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As at 31st March, 2017, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$2,017,450,000
(2016: HK$2,226,463,000), representing a decrease of 9.4% as compared
with the same period last year. Included in the amount of turnover,
HKS$1,604,151,000 (2016: HK$1,722,866,000) was generated by cosmetics
business, representing a decrease of 6.9% over the same period last year and
79.5% of the Group’s total turnover (2016: 77.4%). The turnover of fashion
business reached HK$413,299,000 (2016: HK$503,597,000), representing a
17.9% decrease as compared with the same period in the previous year. The
gross profit margin of fashion business was 67.1%, representing an increase
of 1.6 percentage points as compared with 65.5% for the same period last
year. The gross profit margin of cosmetics business for the year was 32.8%,
representing a decrease of 1.8 percentage points as compared with 34.6%
for the same period last year. The Group recorded a loss of HK$25,894,000
during the year as compared with a profit of HK$58,933,000 last year. The
turnaround from profit to loss was mainly attributable to the segment loss of
HK$14,634,000 (2016: a profit of HK$94,019,000) recorded by the Group’s
cosmetics business for the year due to the persistent weak performance of the
consumer market in Hong Kong. The fashion business recorded a segment
loss of HK$8,003,000 for the year (2016: HK$8,850,000). Whereas, an
increase in fair value of investment properties of HK$9,937,000 was recorded
for the year. It was mainly attributable to the appreciation of a whole floor
property located at G/F, No. 86 San Hong Street North New Territories,
Hong Kong, which acquired by the Group during the year as an investment

property.

As at 31st March, 2017, the Group had 90 Colourmix stores (31st March,
2016: 85 stores), of which 85 stores were located in Hong Kong, 4 stores
were in Macau, and 1 store was in China. In August 2015, the Group
established another cosmetics store, namely MORIMOR. As at 31st March,
2017, 7 MORIMOR stores have been set up in Hong Kong. MORIMOR
cosmetics stores offer high quality trendy skin care and cosmetics products
by integrating global premier skin care and beauty concepts, with diversified
products covering skin care, fragrance, make-up, hairdressing, body care
and cosmeceuticals and health food. In addition, the professional beauty
consultants offer customised personal services and consultations on skin care
so that customers can enjoy the relaxed and pleasant experience of beauty
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services. During the year, cosmetics retail business recorded a turnover of
HK$1,604,151,000 (2016: HK$1,722,866,000), representing a decrease of
6.9% and accounting for 79.5% of the Group’s total turnover. The gross
profit margin of the cosmetics business for the year was 32.8%, representing
a decrease of 1.8 percentage points as compared with 34.6% for the same
period last year. The cosmetics business for the year recorded a segment loss
of HK$14,634,000. As a result of the rapid growth experienced in the past
consecutive years, a considerably high base has been accumulated for the
cosmetics business. With a reduction in sales figures due to the persisting
weakness in the retail market and overall consumption environment in Hong
Kong as well as a drop in the
number of inbound visitors to
Hong Kong during the year
. under review, the Group had
to stimulate sales by offering
multiple promotional discounts
and organising marketing
activities, which led to reduced
gross profit margin and a
significant decrease in segment
result as compared with the same

period last year.

As at 31st March, 2017, the Group had a total number of 119 fashion stores
in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and the Mainland China (31st March,
2016: 128 stores). The decrease in the number of stores as compared with
the same period last year was mainly attributable to the restructuring of its
retail network by the Group in overseas markets, particularly in Singapore
and China during the year, to alleviate the negative impact on the overall
results of fashion business in the future. During the year under review, the
retail market in Hong Kong was extremely weak, resulting in a decline of
17.9% in the turnover of the Group’s fashion business. Nevertheless, the
gross profit margin of fashion business increased by 1.6 percentage points to
67.1% as compared with the same period last year. It was mainly attributable
to a reduction in production costs due to the Group’s stringent control
over procurement and production costs. During the year, fashion business
recorded a segment loss of HK$8,003,000, narrowed by 9.6% as compared
with the segment loss of HK$8,850,000 for the same period last year.
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The fashion retail business in Hong Kong and Macau accounted for 87.1%
of the Group’s total turnover in fashion business. During the year ended
31st March, 2017, the turnover of Hong Kong and Macau market reached
HK$360,158,000 (2016: HK$401,011,000), representing a decrease of 10.2%
as compared with the same period last year, and the turnover of comparable
stores for the year also recorded a decrease of 8.1%. The gross profit margin
of Hong Kong and Macau regions
raised by 1.1 percentage points to
69.5% as compared with same period
last year. It was mainly attributable
to the reduction in product costs. As
at 31st March, 2017, the Group had a
total of 85 stores established in Hong
Kong and Macau (31st March, 2016: 82

stores).

The retail business in Singapore recorded a turnover of HK$25,942,000 (2016:
HK$33,178,000) for the year, representing a decrease of 21.8% as compared
with the same period last year. As of 31st March, 2017, the Group had 5
stores in Singapore (31st March, 2016: 8 stores). Over the past few years, the
market environment in Singapore has been very challenging, and the Group
has closed down under-performing stores to alleviate the negative impact on
the overall results of the fashion business. During the year under review, the
turnover of comparable stores decreased by 7.7% in local currency terms as
compared with the same period last year.

The turnover of the China market for the year reached HK$27,150,000 (2016:
HK$31,992,000), representing a decrease of 15.1% as compared with the same
period last year, mainly due to a decrease in the number of stores. As of 31st
March, 2017, the Group had a total of 29 Veeko and Wanko stores in China
(31st March, 2016: 38 stores).
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Owing to the weak consumption sentiment of local citizens and tourists,
the retail market in Hong Kong currently encounters a major challenge.
It is expected that the challenge faced by the retail business will continue,
and consumption sentiments will remain cautious. Despite the unfavorable
market conditions, the Group will continue to seek opportunities for
growth. Nevertheless, the management will continue to monitor the market
closely in the future for various fluctuations and uncertainties, and take
appropriate measures accordingly. In the meantime, the Group will remain
to be prudent in its financial and operational management through stringent
costs control and strengthened
inventory management, so as to lower
inventory costs and enhance inventory
efficiency. Looking forward, the
Group will continue to commit to the
enrichment of the cosmetics product
portfolio, as well as increasing trendy
beauty products with exclusive
distributorship, conducting staff
training for the provision of quality
professional services, and stepping up
internal consolidation.

Regarding the fashion retail business, the Hong Kong and Macau market
accounted for 87.1% of the total turnover of the fashion business of the
Group. The fashion retail business will continue to focus primarily on the
Hong Kong and Macau market in the future. To cope with the stagnant
retail environment as well as to meet constantly changing needs in the
market, the Group will continue to optimise product designs and improve
customers’ shopping experience. As for the overseas markets, the Group will
continue to be cautious in the adjustment of the overseas store portfolio.
Underperforming stores will be closed down further for redeployment of
resources to profitable stores. The number of stores in the Singapore market,
in particular, decreased from 8 to 5 during the year under review. It is
expected that if there is no sign of recovery in sales, the Group will continue
to scale down its business in this market. In addition, the Group will also be
committed to controlling production costs. This includes the strategic phasing
out of the Zhuhai production plant and the redeployment of production
resources to the existing production plant in Shantou. It is believed that this

can further reduce production costs and raise gross profit margin.



VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

TRHEE

Chairman’s Statement

RE(#&)

EEERAIBNBRETHERESES
BIEHEARISIHEEKT - BEREES
EAHE  EEEHESEDE 0 RfmEHRE
EmrREED - BENRESR KB EAERM
ZIEHEERARY c EEGRARAING
R34 2 5 & 0 R MBI B B
& TREIRRFEMNEHEEEEZWME
& EESTTERRERE - EERZ
F—RE+— A LL79,225,0007% IT 52 A UK
BN F B R RETSHE 1 T 2/
M - ZMEBRAMERERRN BB
RIS WA - £ER A LRI
BRERK 5K
DINGIE=- V2R
EBZTEEH-
LV EB TR EE
NRABERNE
BEN RAE
38 280 2R R K AR
20 LU N F
SRR b S
RIFHERE E RO R
EBIFER B
B R R R TR
ERY[EIZR o

Prospects( Continued)

Under the challenging environment, the Group will continue to be cautious
in adjusting its store portfolio and reviewing rental levels. Given the
slowdown in the retail market with declined rental rates in prime districts,
the bargaining power of retailers are enhanced and therefore it helps reduce
the rental pressure for stores with expiring lease terms. The Group will close
down certain stores with low performance and open new stores in prime
locations, with the expectation that there will be additional rental savings
in the coming year. The Group also constantly explores for investment
opportunities. In November 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of
a whole floor property located at G/F, No. 86 San Hong Street North New
Territories, Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$79,225,000. Currently,
the property is held for investment purpose by generating income through
rental. The Group considered the
acquisition was an investment
opportunity, which may also be used
as a retail store of the Group in the
future. In addition, the Group will
strive to uplift its competitiveness,
improve operational efficiency and
reduce costs in order to increase
profit margin, such that we can lay
a solid foundation for the Group’s
sustainable growth in the future and
for the shareholders’ steady return
in the long run.
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Liquidity & Financial Resources

The Group’s working capital decreased from HKS$423,090,000 as at 31st
March, 2016 to HK$300,743,000 for the year end.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s cash and bank balances
(mainly in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi) amounted to HK$86,112,000
(31st March, 2016: HK$80,461,000). The outstanding bank borrowings
(mainly in Hong Kong Dollar) amounted to HK$300,132,000 (31st March,
2016: HK$161,056,000). The borrowings were mainly used for the acquisition
of an investment property at a consideration of HK$79,225,000 in November,
2016.

At the end of the reporting period, the current ratio was 1.77 times (31st
March, 2016: 2.78 times) and the gearing ratio of the Group was 0.43
(31st March, 2016: 0.21) which was calculated based on the Group’s total
borrowings of HK$300,132,000 (31st March, 2016: HK$161,056,000) and the
total equity of HK$699,447,000 (31st March, 2016: HK$752,689,000).

At 31st March, 2017, the Group had banking facilities amounting
to HK$367,567,000 (31st March, 2016: HK$292,305,000), of which
HK$323,730,000 (31st March, 2016: HK$189,257,000) was utilised by the
Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency purchases (mainly
in United States Dollar and Euro), which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 29% (2016: 36%) of purchases costs are in
foreign currencies for the year. The management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency risk
by entering into forward contracts should the need arises.
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Pledge of Assets
At the end of the reporting period, the amount of assets pledged by the

Group to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group was HK$237,622,000 (31st March, 2016: HK$147,676,000).

Contingent Liabilities

At 31st March, 2017, the Company had provided guarantees of
HK$450,822,000 (31st March, 2016: HK$322,042,000) to certain banks in
respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Staff & Remuneration Policies

At 31st March, 2017, the Group had approximately 2,200 employees (31st
March, 2016: approximately 2,600). The Group mainly determines staff
remuneration (including insurance and medical benefits) in accordance with
the industry’s practices. The Group also implemented a reward scheme for
its staff based on their individual performance. In addition to their basic
remuneration and welfare, some key employees were granted share options as
reward and incentive to enhance their loyalty to the Group.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to all
the employees for their devotion, contribution and diligence and my deepest
gratitude to all the shareholders, customers, suppliers and business partners
for their continuous support. I sincerely hope that all of you will continue to
contribute to the success of the Group.

Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2017
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Review and Performance of the Year and Principal Risks and Uncertainties

A review of the business of the Group during the year and its future
development, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
key performance indicators and a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the Group are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement”
section on pages 4 to 10 of this annual report, which constitute part of this
directors’ report. The capital risk management and financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are shown in notes 31 and 32b to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of the
environment and our society. The Group has endeavoured to comply with
laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and adopted
effective environmental policies to ensure its projects meet the required
standards and ethics. The Company’s first environmental, social and
governance report is set out on pages 40 to 48 of this annual report which
laid out the details of the policies and performance of the Company on the
environmental and social aspects.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

During the year under review, as far as the Board and management are
aware, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognizes that our employees, customers and suppliers and
business associates are key stakeholders to the Company’s success. We
strive to achieve corporate sustainability through engaging our employees,
providing quality products and services to our customers, collaborating with
business partners (including suppliers and contractors) to deliver quality
sustainable products and services and supporting our community.

11
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Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March, 2017 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on page 57 of the annual report.

An interim dividend of HKO0.6 cent per share amounting to HK$14,333,000
was declared for the year. The amount was settled by way of cash dividend
during the year. The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to its shareholders as at 31st March, 2017 comprise of
contributed surplus amounting to HKS$53,135,000 (2016: HK$53,135,000)
and retained profits amounting to HK$1,037,000 (2016: HK$2,017,000)
provided that, after the distribution, the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny ( Chairman)
Ms. LAM Yuk Sum ( Chief Executive Officer)

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John
Mr. LAM Man Tin
Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Ms. Lam Yuk Sum and Mr. Yeung Wing Kay shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

Term of Office of Independent Non-executive Directors

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial period of three years, commencing on Ist April, 1999
which should be renewable for each term of three years until terminated by
either party by three months’ prior written notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

During the year and up to the date of this directors’ report, a permitted
indemnity provision (as defined under section 469 of the Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622 of Laws of Hong Kong (“Companies Ordinance”)), for
the benefit of the directors of the Company has been and is still in force.

Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny, aged 60, is the chairman of the Group.
He is also the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Board. He established the Group in 1984
and is responsible for the overall strategic planning and formulation of
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Cheng has over 33 years of experience
in the manufacturing and retail business. Mr. Cheng was awarded the Young
Industrialist Awards of Hongkong in November 2001 and the Ernst & Young
Entrepreneur Award of the Year 2012 China in November 2012. He is the
husband of Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.

Ms. LAM Yuk Sum, aged 57, is the chief executive officer of the Group
and a member of each of the remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Board. She is responsible for the day-to-day management
of the Group, specifically the merchandising management and design and
product development. She joined the Group in 1987 and has over 30 years of
experience in fashion design and retail business. She is the wife of Mr. Cheng
Chung Man, Johnny.

Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John, aged 67, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 24th March, 2011. He is also a member of each
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee
of the Board. He holds a doctor degree in enterprise management, a master
degree in business administration and a bachelor degree in laws. He is an
associate of the Institute of Financial Accountants in United Kingdom, a
registered financial planner of the Society of Registered Financial Planners
in Hong Kong and in Mainland China as well as a certified risk planner of
The Institute of Crisis & Risks Management in Hong Kong. Dr. Fok has
over 40 years’ experience in banking and management. Currently, he serves
as an independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit
committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee of Dynamic
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) (stock code: 29).
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Mr. LAM Man Tin, aged 58, has been an independent non-executive director
of the Company since 2nd February, 2016. He is also a member of each of
the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Board. He graduated from the University of Hull with a master degree
in strategic marketing (distance learning) in July 1996. Mr. Lam joined
Aeon Stores Co., Ltd. in 1992 and has over 20 years of experience in retail
and service industries. He was an executive director of Aeon Stores (Hong
Kong) Co., Limited (“Aeon Stores HK”), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 984) from May 1999 to May
2012. Mr. Lam served as the managing director of Aeon Stores HK from
May 2006 to May 2012. Following his resignation from the board, he was
engaged as a consultant of Aeon Stores HK until September 2012. Mr. Lam
has been the chief executive officer strategist of Shirble Department Store
Holdings (China) Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 312) since September 2013. Mr. Lam has also been an
independent non-executive director, a member of each of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee and the chairman of the nomination
committee of S. Culture International Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1255) since May 2013. He
is also the founding member of the Hong Kong Yau Yat Chuen Lions Club.

Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay, aged 64, has been an independent non-executive
director since 17th September, 2004. He is also the chairman of each of
the audit committee and remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination committee of the Board. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) and has been a partner of Yeung & Cheuk, a firm of Certified
Public Accountants in Hong Kong for over 20 years. He graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Social
Sciences.

Ms. WONG Chi Ying, aged 48, is the financial controller of the Group and
also the company secretary of the Company. Prior to joining the Group
in July 1996, Ms. Wong worked in an international accounting firm for
about four years. She holds a bachelor degree in accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Save as the Share Option Scheme set out below, during the year ended
31st March, 2017, the Company did not have newly entered or existing
equity-linked agreements.
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b firl=h
Date of grant

“2-cEtAtH

Tth October, 2013

“2-ZH+AtH

Tth October, 2013

“2-MENA=+EA

25th April, 2014

“2-NENA=+AA

25th April, 2014

“2-tE-AnA

9th January, 2017

“2-tF-AnfH

9th January, 2017

frfEaREY
Vesting period

“Z-=FtAtHE
ZE2-"%1+R7~H
Tth October, 2013
to 6th October, 2016

“Z--FtAtHZE
ZZ-\EtAAH
Tth October, 2013
to 6th October, 2018

“E-NENA-+RAE
“2-tENAZ+AR
25th April, 2014
to 24th April, 2017

“2-MENA-+HAZE
Z2-NEMAZ+AA
25th April, 2014
to 24th April, 2019

“E2-tE-AnAE
“ECRE-A/H

9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2020

—E-t5-ANRE
“E_"%-R/QH

9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2022

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30th August,
2013, the Company approved and adopted a share option scheme.

Particulars of the share option scheme adopted by the Group are set out in

note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options were granted to the directors or substantial sharecholders of the
Company during the year or outstanding under the share option scheme.

The following table discloses details of options held by employees of the
Group and movements in such holdings during the year ended 31st March,

2017:

TR

Exercisable period

“E-AE+RtHE
“E-\EtARH
Tth October, 2016
to 6th October, 2018

“Z-\F+AtHE
ZZ2EE+AAA
Tth October, 2018
to 6th October, 2020

ZE-tENAZ+ARE
ZE-AEMB-+MWA
25th April, 2017
to 24th Apri, 2019

“E-7ENAZ+hRE
“EZ-FNAZ+MA
25th April, 2019
to 24th April, 2021

“2_2F-ApAE
“ECCE-ANH

9th January, 2020 to
8th January, 2022

“ECCE-RAABE
“ECNE-AAH

9th January, 2022 to
8th January, 2024

BRTER
Exercise
price

per share

0.2250% 7
HKS$0.2250

0.2250% 7T
HKS$0.2250

0.300037
HKS$0.3000

0.300037
HKS$0.3000

0.183287
HKS0.1832

0.183287
HKS$0.1832

RZB-RE RZF-tF
mE—H REER REER =R=1-H
2t & HH HRIT{E
Balance Granted Cancelled  Outstanding

at during during at
14.2016 the year the year 31.3.2017
17,240,000 - (1,280,000) 15,960,000
17,240,000 - (1,280,000) 15,960,000
4,020,000 - (1,900,000) 2,120,000
4,020,000 - (1,900,000) 2,120,000
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
42,520,000 6,000,000 (6,360,000) 42,160,000
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At the date of this report, the total number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of the outstanding options is 42,160,000. The outstanding options
represent approximately 1.8% of the issued share capital of the Company at
the date of this report.

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer’s Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31st March, 2017, the interests of the directors and the chief executive
officer in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

ARATEBT

&= ]xa

FrIEFEE 8T Percentage of

B1p s LERE R the issued
Capacity/ Number of issued share capital

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny

( Chief Executive Officer)

Nature of interest
1PN

Founder

BEEEEA
Beneficial owner

{EEEELEA

Beneficiary of Trust

BERHAEA

Beneficial owner

ordinary shares held
1,308,257,768
(KizE)

(Note)

173,757,514

1,482,015,282

of the Company

62.04%

1,308,257,768
(HsE)
(Note)

256,027,462

1,564,285,230

65.48%
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Note: These 1,308,257,768 shares are beneficially owned by Silver Crown Profits

Limited (“Silver Crown”). The shares in Silver Crown are in turn held
by the trustee of the J Cheng Family Trust, a discretionary trust, the
discretionary objects of which include family members of Mr. Cheng
Chung Man, Johnny and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum.

Other than disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held
by certain directors in trust for the Group, none of the directors and the chief
executive officer had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of part XV of the SFO) as at 31st March, 2017, as
required to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Other than the share option scheme of the Company, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to which
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company or an entity
connected with a director (as defined under Section 486 of the Companies
Ordinance) had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

Other than disclosed above under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive Officer’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
and other substantial shareholders’ interests disclosed in the following table,
at 31st March, 2017, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed that the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than the directors and the chief
executive officer) of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company.

AATE BT

& N=}7 x4

FFEERTL@KRHE Percentage of the
Number of issued issued share capital

ordinary shares held of the Company

BERBEEA 1,308,257,768 54.76%
Beneficial owner
BRI (f5F) 1,308,257,768 54.76%
Interest of a controlled

corporation (Note)
E5EAN (HfzE) 1,308,257,768 54.76%

HSBC International Trustee

Limited (“HSBC International”) Trustee (Note)

iofEa

Silver CrownZ 2282 22 1TAX A Well Feel
%75 > MWell FeelJ5HSBC International
ZEEMBAR - RBESRIAEEH
E1SEBIE X Z HE » Well Feel RHSBC
International % B #% iR 1E 2 #% & HSilver
Crown# BB ZFIBARARBRGDHHES
LS o

Note:

The entire issued share capital of Silver Crown was held by Well Feel which in
turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC International. By virtue of the
provisions of Part XV of the SFO, each of Well Feel and HSBC International was
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Silver Crown
was interested.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers and the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases and total
sales for the year, respectively.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued shares) had an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of
the Company.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended to the
Board by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees and details of the scheme are set out in note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31st March, 2017 and up to
the date of this report as required under the Listing Rules.

Events after the Reporting Period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by the
Group after 31st March, 2017 and up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017
have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will retire
at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting and offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2017
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company hereby presents this
Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s annual report for the year
ended 31st March, 2017.

Recognising the importance of a publicly listed company’s responsibilities
to enhance its transparency and accountability, the Company is committed
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance in the interests of its
shareholders. The Board believes that good corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with all code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31st March,
2017.

The Company continues to review its corporate governance practices in
order to enhance its corporate governance standard, to comply with the
increasingly tightened regulatory requirements and to meet the rising
expectations of shareholders and investors.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transaction by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries, all of the directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31st March, 2017.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess inside
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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EET BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EEGEEAEEZE  HMAKRRER  The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
W WEHFEALARREFNRHEZFER  performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the
E ° Company.

EEGTHRTESNAARBITHER  The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a director to
BEHZER  LERESEEABITHMB  perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is

B A B SESR spending sufficient time performing them.
EEERYMER Board Composition
EEGWFHAMKESEMN  BFEMAH  The Board currently comprises five members, consisting of two executive
TEER=MEIFHNTES - directors and three independent non-executive directors.
BRFEFEH(H)
FHe Length of
Age Service (Since)
HiTESE - Executive directors:
BREE S A Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny 60 1999
(EEEBTE) ( Chairman of the Board)
MEHZ T Ms. LAM Yuk Sum 57 1999
(TTEI#E#) ( Chief Executive Officer)
B IFHITESE - Independent non-executive directors:
EiREEL Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 67 2011
MR SE S Mr. LAM Man Tin 58 2016
K EESE Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay 64 2004

EECERENENAERFIZFISH The biographical information of the directors are set out in the section
TEEgREE ET - headed “Directors’ Report” on pages 14 to 15 of this annual report.

REEYAERMERL LA KRFEEE  Save that Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum are
Sy EEEMECHMENRE  ¥¥% R husband and wife, there are no financial, business, family or other material/
FEEHMEA AHRARAR o relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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There is a clear division in the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer which are performed by different individuals. This ensures a balanced

distribution of power and authority.

Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible
for the leadership for and management of the Board, ensuring the effective
functioning of the Board and encouraging directors to make full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs as well as ensuring that all significant and
key issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board in a timely

manner.

Ms. Lam Yuk Sum, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the Company. She is
responsible for implementing the Company’s strategy, objectives and policies
approved and delegated by the Board with the assistance of the senior
management.

The husband and wife relationship between Mr. Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
and Ms. Lam Yuk Sum does not impair the balance of power between the
Board and the management as their duties and responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

During the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Company has at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
directors are independent.
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Each of the directors of the Company is engaged on a service agreement (for
executive director) or an appointment letter (for independent non-executive
director) for a term of 3 and 2 years respectively. The appointment of
executive director may be terminated by either party by giving three months’
prior written notice.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), all directors
of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at the Company’s annual general meetings and any director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
hold office until the next following general meeting or the next following
annual general meeting, as the case may be, of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of, and promoting
the success of the Company. This is achieved by the setting up of corporate
and strategic objectives and policies, and the monitoring and evaluations of
operating activities and financial performance of the Company.

All the directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the division of
functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management. The
Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company, including
the approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and
budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operations of the Company
are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management of the
Company. The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to these
officers for the implementation of Board decisions. The Board periodically
reviews the delegated functions and work tasks. Prior to entering into any
significant transactions, the aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well as
the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior management,
with a view to ensuring compliance with Board procedures and all applicable
laws and regulations. Any director may request independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon
reasonable request being made to the Board.

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings a year and
additional meetings are arranged as and when required to discuss
significant issues, either in person or by means of electronic or
other communication facilities. Schedules for annual meeting and draft
agenda of each meeting are sent to all directors in advance to enable them
to have an opportunity to include matters in the agenda. Notice of at least
14 days is given of a regular Board meeting. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are dispatched to all directors at least 3 days before each regular
Board meeting to ensure that the directors have sufficient time to review the
related documents and be adequately prepared for the meeting. The Board
and each director also have separate and independent access to the senior

management whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to all directors for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final versions

are open for directors’ inspection.

The Company’s Articles contains provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their associates have a material

interest.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the

Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors received
the following training during the year ended 31st March, 2017 with emphasis
on their roles, functions and duties as directors of a listed company:

ZAEE - HEEEEE
BRI xg B i)
EENE Name of Directors Type of Training (V¢
HITESE Executives Directors
BRSE A Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny A, B
MEZRLL Ms. LAM Yuk Sum A
BUIFHITEE Independent Non-executive Directors
EiRtEiE L Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John A, B
MR S A Mr. LAM Man Tin A, B
K EESE Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay A
HigE - Note:
IEENAR A Types of Training
Al Hi SRR - B FE(H T RIS EF A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, seminars,
FE - BiEZERILIFY conferences and workshops
B: BEEHEE#m HE B B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant

Tl ~ #EERIERETIH

EREFEPAFESERRCERE I
HAhZHEMEEZ S LIS EREHR
RE 2 R IRHE ©

publications

All the directors understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any suitable training to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
of the Company are established with defined written terms of reference.
The terms of reference of all three committees are posted on the Company’s
website and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request.

All members of the Audit Committee while the majority of the members
of each of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are independent non-executive directors and the list of the chairman and
members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate Information”
on pages 2 to 3 of this annual report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent

professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of all directors of the Company, the
majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of all directors and senior management remuneration and
on the remuneration packages of all directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing formal
and transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will
be determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31st March, 2017. During the meetings, the Remuneration Committee has
performed the following work: (i) reviewing and granting of share options to
senior management; (ii) reviewing the bonus payment to directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing the salary increment policy for all directors and
senior management of the Company; and (iv) reviewing and recommending
to the Board regarding the remuneration package of the independent
non-executive director whose appointment has been renewed.
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Senior Management’s Emoluments

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than Directors) by band for
the year ended 31st March, 2017 are as follows:

EEAE
Number of employee(s)

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 2

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31st
March, 2017 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of all directors of the Company, the
majority of them are independent non-executive directors.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members, making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and succession planning for directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Board
has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” (the “Policy”) which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board and the Nomination Committee is
responsible for monitoring the implementation of the Policy. In determining
the optimal composition of the Board, the Company takes into consideration
differences in the talents, skills, regional and industry experience,
background, gender, age and other qualities of the members of the Board.
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The Nomination Committee reviews annually the structure, size and
composition of the Board and where appropriate, make relevant
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy. In recommending candidates for appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

During the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Nomination Committee held a
meeting to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive directors and to review
the re-appointment of independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee is of the view that the current composition of
the Board is a balanced and diversified mix that is relevant to the Company’s
business growth and has not set any measurable objective implementing the
Policy.

The Audit Committee comprises all the three independent non-executive
directors with the chairman of which possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting expertise. None of the committee members is a

former partner of the Company’s external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are: to oversee the Company’s
relationship with the external auditor; to review the financial information;
to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems; and to review the effectiveness of the internal audit
function, arrangements to enable employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the
Company.
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During the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Audit Committee held six
meetings of which the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer

attended five of these meetings. A summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the year was as follows:

(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

(vi)

reviewed and commented on audited annual results for the year ended
31st March, 2016 and unaudited interim results for the six months ended
30th September, 2016 respectively;

reviewed the business performance for the three months ended 30th
June, 2016 and nine months ended 31st December, 2016;

reviewed the scope of audit work, auditors’ remuneration and terms of
engagement and recommending re-appointment of auditor;

reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions of the Group; and

reviewed and adopted the internal audit charter and the terms of
reference and mode of operation of the risk management taskforce; and

reviewed the questionnaires issued by the Audit Committee and
answered by the executive directors.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the reports on the latest progress of

internal audit assignments and enterprise risk management project.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors once without the

presence of the executive directors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31st March, 2017 have been

reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee

regarding the appointment and re-election of the external auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Employees Written Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance records of each director at the Board and Board Committee
meetings and the general meetings of the Company held during the year
ended 31st March, 2017 are set out in the table below:

HERYEEAE
Attendance/Number of Meetings

REBERE

FMESS REEESE ENEEE Annual

EEE  Remuneration Nomination Audit General

EEHE Name of Directors Board Committee Comnmittee Comnmittee Meeting

HITEE Executive Directors

B kT Mr. CHENG Chung Man, Johnny 10/10 202 1/1 56 111

HEHZZL Ms. LAM Yuk Sum 10/10 212 11 516 11
B IHITESE  Independent Non-Executive Directors

B EL Dr. FOK Kam Chu, John 8/10 2/2 1711 6/6 /1

MHSEE Mr. LAM Man Tin 9/10 22 1/1 6/6 1/1

BKELE Mr. YEUNG Wing Kay 9/10 212 11 6/6 11

B ERERRBAI  EETRERER
TEFRELER TRBIFHTERS
TT R

Besides the above-mentioned Board meetings, the Chairman also held a
meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the presence of
executive director during the year.

Veek) Wank! colourmixes MorIMOR O




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

EXERREE

Corporate Governance Report

EENMBRRPZER

EERTERMEAARNBE_S—tE=
B=+—BLFEMBRERZIEME - LUk
REVBRRAER AT HRMRAER
AN - MEIRABIMERBERZ S5
ZRIRE

AAREIZBETAREN RS M RE
ZEREXTERENAFTREVFEESS6
B2 EUREmBmEE P

HEEE £

BREAARRBE_E—EF=R=+—
BIEFEMEB RS RIEZBIRIE M
B FEAT HMIS AL UM 1R 2 - BAEPRTT & ETAM

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2017 and ensure
that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 49 to 56 of this annual
report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An anlaysis of the remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31st March, 2017 is set out below:

TR 224720 -

eft EfER
BR#EFE R Category of Services Fee Paid/Payable
FET
HK$’000
B R 5 Audit Service 1,926

IERZ B BR 75 Non-audit Services
— MRIERTE — Tax service 258
— HE ¥R — Other professional services 188
&t TOTAL 2,372
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Objective and Purpose

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group has established and
maintained a proper and effective risk management and internal control
systems, as well as reviewing the effectiveness of the system. The system
can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives during the Group’s business
operation.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses on an annual basis the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, which covers all material controls, including financial, operational,
compliance, as well as considers the sufficiency of budget with respect to
resources, employees’ capabilities and experience, training courses and the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function. Significant issues
from internal audit department, external professional consultants and
management letters from external auditor are brought to the attention
of the Audit Committee to ensure that prompt remedial action is taken.
All recommendations will be properly followed up to ensure they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time.

The Company has an Internal Audit Department to handle the internal
audit function. The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal audit function and the review result is satisfactory.

The management of daily operations of the Company’s business departments
is based on the Company’s corporate risk management framework. The
corporate risk management framework addresses four risk categories,
including strategic, financial, operation and compliance risks. Through a
taskforce comprising executive directors and senior management, the Board
carries out continuous monitoring of the status of the Group’s exposure to
these risks.

During the year, the following major procedures have been established by
the Group according to the Group’s risk management and internal control

systems:

. According to the requirements of corporate risk management policy,
a risk management model with a Three lines of defence has been
designed:

- First line of defence consists of all business departments;

- Second line of defence consists of a risk management taskforce
comprising executive directors, senior management and heads
of major departments;
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- Third line of defence consists of the Internal Audit
Department and the Audit Committee, that is, Internal Audit
Department conducts independent review and evaluation on
the effectiveness of internal control in various departments,
provides recommendations and proposes measures to safeguard
against risks, and submits the assessment results to the Audit
Committee for review.

. Cooperated with professional consultants, and through a series of
workshops and interviews, helped identify and evaluate the major risks
of the Group;

. Quarterly submitted to the Audit Committee a risk management and
internal control progress report;

. In order to improve the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, the Board has adopted the recommendations
proposed by the professional consultants on risk management and
put in place improvement measures in internal control aspects of
major operational procedures. In addition, the Group has released a
guidance with respect to the handling of confidential information and
inside information for the prevention of inappropriate use of such
information.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31st March, 2017. The Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee as well as the management report and the internal audit findings,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the year
ended 31st March, 2017, and considered that such systems are effective and
adequate. The annual review also covered the financial reporting and staff
qualifications, experience and relevant resources.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about the possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Group.
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Ms. Wong Chi Ying, the financial controller of the Group, has been the
Company Secretary of the Company since 1999. Ms. Wong complied with the
qualification and training requirements under the Listing Rules for the year
ended 31st March, 2017.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue in general meetings, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting. All resolutions put forward in general meetings are taken by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results are posted on the websites
of the Company and of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited after
each general meeting. Detailed procedures for conducting a poll are also
explained during the proceedings of meetings.

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened on the requisition of one
or more shareholders holding not less than one tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings pursuant
to article 64 of the Company’s Articles. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Company Secretary, stating the business to be transacted, and
signed by the requisitionist(s). Shareholders should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in the Company’s Articles.

There are no provisions in the Company’s Articles or the Cayman Islands
Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Sharecholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set
out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the Company,
please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” which is posted on the Company’s website.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:

Address: 10/F., Wyler Centre Phase 11, 192-200 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung,

New Territories, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 23109017
Email: contact@veeko.com.hk

Shareholders are encouraged to provide, amongst other things, in particular,
their email addresses to the Company in order to facilitate timely and
effective communication.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may

be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

Communications with shareholders and investors

The Company endeavors to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the investment community at large.
The Company is committed to continue to maintain an open and effective
communication policy and to update shareholders, investors and general
public on relevant information on its business in a timely manner, subject to
relevant regulatory requirements, through the annual reports, interim reports,

announcements and other corporate communications.
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The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the Group,
and encourages their attendance at general meetings to communicate any
concerns they may have with the Board or management directly. The
Company’s annual general meeting is an especially important forum. In
order to encourage and facilitate shareholders’ attendance at its annual
general meeting, the Company gives at least 20 clear business days’ prior
notice together with a detailed agenda. The Chairman of the Board and
the chairman of each Board committees (or their delegates) are available to
answer questions at general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/veeko/index.htm, where up-to-date
information and updates on the Company’s structure, board of directors,
announcements, financial information and other information are posted.

Constitutional document

During the year under review, there was no change in the Company’s
Articles. An up-to-date version of the Company’s Articles is also available on
the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
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Our Group understands the importance of sustainable development.
Taking sustainability as our development principle, we believe that we
can continuously foster the development and growth of the Group.
Our management team fulfils Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”™)
measures, including caring for our staff, protecting the environment and
bringing positive impacts to the surrounding community. The mission of
our management is to foster community development while promoting our
business development, through balancing the impacts on the environment and
community from our business.

The countries and communities where our business is located have provided
us with resources, infrastructure and markets for our business development.
Thus, we strive to reduce detrimental environmental impacts, from the
manufacturing to retailing processes. In addition to continuous improvement
of our manufacturing processes, we also strive to adopt environmentally
friendly measures, provide quality goods to our customers, and create
job opportunities to foster the economic development of the surrounding
communities.

We emphasise stakeholder communication. By communicating with
customers, investors, suppliers, staff and peers, we hope to understand the
views of different stakeholders and improve on our achievements to foster the
Group’s business development. Meanwhile, we also enhance our support to
the community. We implement various CSR schemes and measures to create a
better community.

In future, we will uphold our sustainable development principle. We will
continue to pay attention to environmental protection and community
development issues and create value for all stakeholders in creating a better
society.

We strive to contribute to sustainable development to maintain the
competitiveness of our business development. Thus, this chapter describes
our environmental and social performance. This chapter was prepared
in accordance with the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited to meet
the relevant disclosure requirements. The scope of this chapter covers our
business in Hong Kong, Macau and China. Through complete and thorough
review, we strive to improve our performance in environmental protection
and social development, and maintain the Group’s long-term sustainable
development.
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Otherwise specified, this chapter discloses the environmental, social and
governance progress of the Group for the period from 1st April, 2016 to 31st
March, 2017. Should you have any inquiries, you are welcomed to contact us
through email (contact@veeko.com.hk).

To minimise our environmental and social risks, we have established our
Environmental, Social and Governance working group and engaged an
independent consultancy firm to offer suggestions while preparing this year’s
report. Throughout the processes of data collection and report writing, our
directors’ office and other relevant departments have worked together closely,
while the Board is responsible for the overall ESG strategies and report
approval.

Stakeholder Engagement

To achieve sustainable business development, it is important to maintain
effective communication with stakeholders. Our major stakeholders in our
business include customers, staff, investors, government and regulatory
authorities, suppliers, community partners and industrial associations. We
cherish communication with our stakeholders and believe that their opinions
can be beneficial to the Group’s business development.

Materiality Analysis

To understand the environmental and social risks in our business and
stakeholders’ expectations of the Group in managing these risks, we have
commissioned an independent third-party consultancy firm to conduct
the stakeholder engagement activities. The consultancy firm collected
information through interviews and questionnaires. The questionnaire
required the responding stakeholders to rate the Group’s environmental and
social issues from 1 (most unimportant) to 6 (most important). Through
understanding stakeholders’ opinions, we can identify and prioritise the
Group’s material ESG issues.
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Sustainable Supply Chain Management

The Group emphasises the quality of its suppliers. Through working closely
with suppliers, the Group can achieve sustainability in its supply chain. To
effectively enforce the Group’s merchandising policy, we have established
merchandising standards and procedures. Formal merchandising procedures
only commence upon receiving approval from the Hong Kong head office to
ensure that our supply chain comply with the standards relevant to product
quality, environmental and other aspects which should be achieved, so as to
minimise operational risks.

In our fashion business, our suppliers provide various products and services,
including fabric, yarn, manufacturing parts and logistics. We thoroughly
evaluate potential suppliers by taking the relevant standards as one of the
criteria. Apart from considering the quality of the suppliers’ products, we
also consider whether the materials comply with the relevant safety and
environmental standards. For example, we regularly examine random samples
from suppliers to ensure their fabric meets national environmental and
quality standards.
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In our cosmetics retailing business, our product types include skin care,
fragrance, makeup, personal care and trendy products. These products are
mainly sourced from Korea, Japan, the European Union and the United
States, where the product testing regulations and requirements are stringent.
We have established standards for selecting suppliers, such as prioritisation
of the selection of suppliers which have already obtained product quality
management certificates, protect the environment and respect intellectual
properties. These measures ensure that our customers will purchase quality
cosmetics products.

In order to strengthen the communication with our suppliers, the Group
evaluates and interviews various types of suppliers to understand their
production and supply situation and monitor their performance to ensure
that they can continuously comply with our standards. We also hope that
through continuous review of the relevant procedures, we can effectively
enhance the product quality and environmental and social performance of the
Group’s suppliers.

Product Responsibility

We strive to procure and offer products of high quality and complied with
relevant environmental and safety standards to our customers. In order to
enhance our customers’ shopping experience, Colourmix, MORIMOR, Veeko
and Wanko offer product return promise for customers in Hong Kong,
Macau and China.

Service Responsibility

We care about the feedback and comments that we receive from
customers. Through establishing a comprehensive customer feedback
mechanism, we listen attentively to enhance our service quality in a timely
manner.

43



44

HMEREETHAMERIRBNE
i REEFIIRER - WIMLALREREE R
BEH - REEMIRER - BMINEFRIBE
FIRGE HERARRPIETT HEIRE - JFITA
BERHEAMTRNBEEERE - HINEF
B4 HH AR TEE - BfIRH
ZEREBENRIFEE  E—SREAR
PIRRFEESE -

H5oh o HBIREHETRSRE UK
HEBNRBTME > MEREMANZEA
BBt ARERMAEBENRT -

EEAERRERENEAEHRILRE -
WEBEHNEAER(FMVIPE SHE
R ZFEFEFOEAEZR (T
B2 ) #0500 MU RILFIE B E B RHEE
EEME  LHERBEENITIEASMESN
REBIEEEN - MHEFITEH EHERRRIE
FEREE  BAEERESRRMBAIRAE
IFABREEERS  REEAZEHM
HWRER  UBLETIAEMFE » BIHE
1E U REVAEERNEAZR -

et & Tief R AT TIERIR

BRFEEEIREEERBRENESR -
it > SEEERAVSLA R T7E - FEAEE FE
BTRERK - EEE BT 5TE B
EURETITRER  WEEHTHER
ENEE  BETITHFAEATUREE
R LIEIRIE

HEEBWANBREKFTERIINA > 218
IBETR  ZIEEAFESIRET R
B RPN ETHAZHTEFHELIRE
BATEE - HFIEETEE TR A B
5 HGERE TFARE (R R R 50 K (14
BIR IR TRREES A RET
s — AL TR RS -

We handle inquiries, feedback and complaints on our products and services
from our customers. For inquiries, feedback and complaints on our fashion
and cosmetics products, our customer service department will investigate
and follow up with the relevant departments. We also offer various
communication channels to our customers, including email, fax, hotline and
social platforms. We hope that we can promote our service quality through
integral communication with customers.

Meanwhile, we visit our stores and assess their performance through mystery
customers to ensure our retail staff consistently offer quality service to our
customers.

The Group has policies in place to protect customers’ personal data and
privacy. When collecting customers’ personal information (e.g., in the VIP
member application), we comply with the latest Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance to ensure that the information is collected for specific purposes
and only designated staff have access to it. We have also established relevant
policies and measures by providing written guidelines for all staff through the
information management department. In this manner our staff can properly
handle personal and confidential information and prevent any unauthorised
access, processing, amendments or usage of such information.

Providing Staff Welfare and Fair Work Environment

We view our employees as the cornerstone of the Group’s business
development. Thus, the Group has adopted a people-oriented principle and
actively responds to their needs. Through establishing a holistic benefits and
welfare system and employee code of conduct, as well as strictly enforcing
occupational safety policies, the Group works together with our employees to
create a fair and safe working environment.

The Group’s human resources policies clearly state that we avoid hiring
illegal and child labour during the recruitment process. Our employees enjoy
equal opportunities and fair treatment. We actively adopt non-discriminatory
policies and commit ourselves to abiding by the Code of Practice on
Employment under the Disability Discrimination Ordinance and Sex
Discrimination Ordinance, and thus we hope to create a fair working
environment for our employees.
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We place special emphasis on the integrity of our employees. In our Employee
Code of Conduct, we stipulate that employees are prohibited from receiving
benefits offered by suppliers or third parties. We have also established
our anti-corruption policies in accordance with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance.

In order to retain excellent employees, we provide our employees with
comprehensive remuneration and benefits. The Group adjusts salaries,
commissions and bonuses according to the individual performance of its
employees. We also offer mandatory provident funds, holidays and other
benefits to qualified employees in accordance with legal requirements so
as to achieve talent retention and care for the long-term development of
our employees. Apart from the basic remuneration package, certain key
employees were granted share options as reward and incentive to enhance
their loyalty to the Group.

In addition to providing attractive employee benefits, we also actively seek to
improve employee morale through organising various activities. We hope that
these activities not only strengthen the relationships between our employees,
but also help them reduce work stress to boost their productivity.

Employee Profile

We believe that a diverse employee structure can be beneficial to our
development. We take openness and fairness as our employment principle
and treat applicants from all backgrounds fairly when hiring employees. As at
31st March, 2017, the Group had approximately 2,200 employees.

Occupational Health and Safety

We strive to offer a healthy and safe work environment for our
employees. We strictly comply with all relevant safety regulations and have
established relevant occupational health and safety guidelines. On the other
hand, to ensure that our employees can fully understand and comply with our
safety guidelines, we provide manual handling operational guidelines. Our
fashion manufacturing factory regularly organises fire drills to make sure that
our staff can respond appropriately during emergencies.
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Learning and Personal Development Opportunities

Providing excellent services for our customers has always been our
philosophy. Training is essential for us to achieve quality service. We offer
a variety of training courses (including customer services and product
knowledge) for our retail employees. We also offer training for newly
admitted employees to enable them to adapt to our company’s working
environment. For example, retail employees receive basic training after
admission to enhance their working performance.

Apart from new staff retail training, to enhance the ability to perform their
work, we also offer employees training programs along with promotion,
including the Big Sister Training Program, Senior Management Training
Program and New Supervisor Training Program.

In addition to strengthening their ability to work, we offer our employees
opportunities for personal development through training in order to meet the
market demand for talents.

Energy Conservation and Emissions Reduction

In order to lessen the environmental impacts of our operation, we comply
with all relevant environmental laws and regulations, including the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China. We have
also implemented a series of energy conservation and emissions reduction
measures. For energy conservation, we have made an effort to deploy LED
lighting in the production space and offices in our factories. We also prevent
energy wastage by maintaining the temperature of our office at approximately
26 degrees Celsius and requiring our staff to shut down all the power sources
before they leave work. During summer, we utilise water curtains in certain
production spaces to lower the room temperature and reduce the use of air
conditioning. Apart from energy conservation measures, we also implemented
an energy conservation management action plan to explicitly plan and
monitor the electricity consumption of the factory. For retail stores, we have
installed automatic detectors where necessary to control external lighting and
reduce electricity wastage.
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In addition to active energy conservation, we also strive to reduce
air pollutant emissions in our production processes. In our fashion
manufacturing business, we have phased out diesel-powered steam furnaces
and replaced them with electric steam furnaces to reduce emissions. For
ventilation, we employ water-cycling cooling facilities in most of the area of
our factories to lower the demand for air conditioning. We hope that we can
effectively minimise the environmental impacts of our business operation
through these energy conservation and emissions reduction practices.

Water Conservation

In terms of water conservation, we strictly follows the Water Resource
Protection Law and implemented relevant production measures. Since 2015,
we have enforced “replace manpower by automation” production principles
and rearranged our factory production space to clear any unnecessary
production space and reduce water and electricity consumption. Since
2016, we have also revamped the design of our steam furnaces to reduce the
frequency of automated water pumping.

We strive to reduce sewage effluence. We have constructed our own filter
pool and clear the sewage pipes by ourselves in our factories. Sewage from
production is filtered before discharge. Our annual inspection also meets the
national discharge requirements.

Waste Management

We strictly enforce the principle of “not directly polluting water sources and
land” and implement relevant measures to reduce waste and enhance the use
of materials. In our fashion production space, we have strict regulations in
arranging the layout draft to minimise surplus and scrap fabric. All harmless
scrap fabric and yarn produced in our production processes is collected,
classified, packed by specific personnel, and then recycled by long-term
partner experts.

In our offices, we strive to implement a “paperless” policy. We promote the
use of electronic documents to reduce paper consumption. If necessary, we
use paper on both sides or reuse single sided paper as draft paper or memos,
thus reducing the Group’s paper consumption and carbon footprint.
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Use of Packaging Materials

We strive to reduce the environmental impacts brought by the use of
packaging materials. We also recycle plastic bags for packaging to reduce
their environmental impact. Any useless plastic waste is collected by specific
personnel and regularly recycled by long-term recycling partners.

Staff Participation in Environmental Protection

Our business is spread widely in both the fashion and cosmetics
industries. Therefore, in addition to our own production process, we also
have responsibility in raising the environmental awareness and participation
of our stakeholders. Through internal and external communication, we hope
that we can spread our environmental mission and enhance the environmental
awareness of our stakeholders.

We regularly check our production facilities and pollution status, and
monitor the environmental awareness of our staff when operating the
production facilities in our factories. We also require staff to turn off all
electrical appliances and water taps when they leave the staff quarters for
work. We hope that these measures can raise the environmental awareness of
our staff and promote pro-environmental behaviour.

While we are striving for business development, we also care about the
community impact of our business. Through establishing and implementing
community investment strategies, we communicate with our stakeholders and
consider their comments when making business decisions, and thus distribute
our resources appropriately in supporting community development. This
year, our community support was mainly practiced through charity donation.

Charity Donation and Sponsorship

We support community donation. Since 2004, the Hong Kong head office has
donated clothing to the Salvation Army in support of the Salvation Army
Recycling Program. The Salvation Army distributes the clothing to family
stores for charity sales and the related revenue is used for the community care
program. Apart from charity sales, the donated clothing is also directly given
to the needy, such as the elderly, low income families, homeless and released
prisoners, etc., to meet their basic needs.

In the long run, we hope to integrate our business characteristics to support

charity donation activities by maximising the effectiveness of our inputs.

Our fashion factories in mainland China also contribute to local communities
by supporting community development.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Veeko International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 127, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March, 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March, 2017,
and of its financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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We identified the allowance for inventories as a key
audit matter because of the significant degree of
management judgement, assumptions and estimation
associated with the determination of the allowance for

inventories.
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As disclosed in notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amount of inventories
(net of allowance of HK$12,776,000) is HK$506,118,000
as at 31st March, 2017.

AITMFERFHEERCEFSE
Our procedures in relation to the allowance for
inventories included:

c THREEEBETERBIMAZEFREN

. Obtaining an understanding of the process
and the information used by management to
determine the allowance;

. RFEAX G MEAA T ERE DT 2 R

0 Testing the accuracy of the inventory ageing
analysis, on a sample basis, to supporting
documents;

0 LT SRR KIB R EE T BB IR E AT AT A 2 18R
BE

. Evaluating the basis of allowance for inventories
and reperforming the underlying calculations
used in the management’s assessment;

. MEEEEAAREEATZEEEE ) &
. Evaluating the historical accuracy of the basis of

allowance used by the management; and
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Management reviewed the inventories listing at 31st
March, 2017, and recognised an allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified based on
the inventory ageing analysis and expected market
conditions. Moreover, management also carried out the
assessment of allowance for inventories by comparing
the carrying amounts of inventories with their net
realisable values, primarily based on the latest selling

prices.
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. Assessing the reasonableness of the management’s
estimates of the net realisable values of the
inventories by tracing the latest selling prices of
the inventories to the sales invoices, on a sample
basis.
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We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated statement of financial position as a
whole, combined with the inherent subjectivity within
the significant management judgments associated with
determining the fair value of the investment properties.

Veeko

AITHMBREMELEEBZEFEE:
Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment

properties included:
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. Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
process including establishment of the valuation
technique and the key inputs to the model with
the involvement of the Valuer and management’s
review of the Valuer’s report;
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As disclosed in notes 4 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties amounted to HK$104,700,000 as
at 31st March, 2017 with the increase in fair value of
investment properties of HK$9,937,000 recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended.
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The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31st March 2017, are determined based on
valuations carried out on that date by an independent
qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer”). The
valuations are dependent on the establishment of
the valuation technique and key inputs to the model
that involves judgement made by the management.
In determining the fair values of parking spaces, the
Valuer considers the key inputs including market
observable transactions of similar properties and taking
into account of the differences in the location and
condition of the investment properties under direct
comparison approach. In determining the fair value
of the commercial property, the Valuer considers the
key inputs including capitalisation rate and monthly
market rent per square foot under income capitalisation

approach.

FIAGEMCEE O REEMKL
Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;
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Evaluating the valuation techniques established
and the reasonableness of the key inputs to
determine the fair values;
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Comparing a selection of relevant market
observable transactions of similar properties
within comparable locations; and

BERATmEEEARZT SR EEN RERLLEREL
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Comparing to relevant market information
on monthly market rent per square foot and
capitalisation rates.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's

report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

C Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's
report is Li Kin Fai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26th June, 2017
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Turnover
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other income, gains and losses

Increase in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs

(Loss) profit before tax
Income tax expense

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of properties

Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on

translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive expense
for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year

(Loss) earnings per share
— basic

— diluted

2077

Annual Report
2017 2016
oz FET FERT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
5 2,017,450 2,226,463
(1,214,399) (1,300,266)
803,051 926,197
(711,916) (713,215)
(125,788) (137,288)
7,682 4,742
9,937 154
6 (4,941) (3,779)
(21,975) 76,811
7 (3,919) (17,878)
8 (25,894) 58,933
1,795 —
3,337) (1,925)
(1,542) (1,925)
(27,436) 57,008
12

HK(1.084) cents;& Al

HK2.467 centsi AL

HK(1.084) cents;&

HK2.456 centsi AL
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—Z—+EH=H=+—H At 31st March, 2017
) 2017 2016
JofzE FET FET
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
3F5ﬁ_§b§§ Non-current Assets
BREME . Investment properties 13 104,700 6,650
EX  WEKRHB Property, plant and equipment 14 214,651 235,359
AT EIE Prepaid lease payments 15 6,469 7,155
ENHEEEE Rental deposits paid 69,047 77,113
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets 16 7,612 7,257
402,479 333,534
mENE E Current Assets
=ZE Inventories 17 506,118 487,192
FEULE 78 & Trade and other receivables
H{th FE U FRIR 18 35,599 41,094
AT R EFIE Prepaid lease payments 15 236 252
B RKERSE Rental and utility deposits paid 53,669 51,603
AJ Uy B2 AR I8 Tax recoverable 10,878 =
EIRIRIRTTIZ RN Pledged bank deposits 19 5,843 6,235
RITHEER  BRRER Bank balances, deposits and cash 20 80,269 74,226
692,612 660,602
mENBE Current Liabilities
ELGESRIER Trade and other payables
H At S 718 21 89,026 74,255
BRHEEES Rental deposits received 28 17
BIRRETEES Secured bank borrowings 22 300,132 161,056
FEfF1RTE Tax payable 2,683 2,184
391,869 237,512
MENE EFE Net Current Assets 300,743 423,090
703,222 756,624
BEAK G Capital and Reserves
BE K Share capital 23 23,888 23,888
i Reserves 675,559 728,801
699,447 752,689
FREEE Non-current Liability
EERIGE & Deferred tax liabilities 16 3,775 3,935
703,222 756,624

BEEEEMN-E—tEFESAZ+/"H  The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 127 were approved and
ORISR E S TR E 1278 MRS authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26th June, 2017 and are
AR A TIALTHKREE - signed on its behalf by:

EY Cheng Chung Man, Johnny
B8 Chairman
2E Lam Yuk Sum

MEH Director
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Consohdated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2017
NEEf
1] BRERE
A BORE  Poprty EREE HARE AERE  She REEA
Share Share  revaluation Translation Special ~ Statutory option  Retained &t
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves reserve profits Total
Tén Tén TEx TEx T  TEx  TEn  TErn  TEn
HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS$000  HKS000
At Ist April, 2015 23888 205,048 - 3,730 2,266 181 1054 508954 745121
Profit for the year - = = = - = = 58,933 58,933
Other comprehensive expense
for the year - - - (1,925) - - - - (1,925)
Total comprehensive (expense)
income for the year = = = (1,925) = = = 58,933 57,008
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments - - - - - - 126 - 726
Share options cancelled - - - - - - (57 5T -
Transfer - - - - - W) - 22 -
Dividends recognised as
distribution (Note [1) - - - - - - - (50,166)  (50,166)
Sub-total - - - - - W) 069 (S0,131)  (49.440)
At 31st March, 2016 23888 205,048 - 1,805 2,266 203 1723 517756 752,689
Loss for the year - - - - - - - (25894  (25,894)
Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year - - 1,795 (3,337) - - - - (1,542)
Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year - - 1,795 (3,337) - - - (25804)  (27436)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments - - - - - - 471 - 471
Share options cancelled - - - - - - (269) 269 -
Transfer - - - - - 10 - (10) -
Dividends recognised as
distribution (Note /1) - - - - - - - (2621 (26277)
Sub-total - - - - - 10 202 (26,018)  (25,806)
At 315t March, 2017 23,888 205,048 1,795 (1,532) 2,266 213 1925 465844 699,447

K-2-t#=R=+-A

Veek) Wank! colourmixes MorIMOR O
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REEREER
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE_ET—tE=A=+—HLEFE
EEBERIRRBTETIIME 2R

(a)

(b)

HRR—ANNFEBEM - Vecko
Holdings Limited Y B% 2Nl {E B2 A<
AR BITERBBBRENRAR
BENESR &

Veeko Holdings Limitedf% &
EHATTEANBLARR &%
Bf /28 /2 ) A% A Y 48 T {B B Veeko
Holdings Limited 3217 1E & UL
BRRAEENESR -

EEMEAERBEETIIME 2B

(a)

(b)

RPN E A RRBEREAERTE
MEREZ T AR &

1R R E AR A A B BB B A R
ZHEANRAEFE T HE ) HEE
FRREFH K LHES
ERREN IR REZDBIHE
AR ZABERMAN—F -

For the year ended 31st March, 2017
The special reserve of the Group represents the aggregate of:

(a)

(b)

the difference between the nominal value of share capital of Veeko
Holdings Limited and the nominal value of the share capital issued
by the Company as consideration for the acquisition, arisen from the
group reorganisation in 1999; and

the difference between the aggregate nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries when they were acquired by Veeko Holdings
Limited prior to the group reorganisation and the nominal value of the
share capital issued by Veeko Holdings Limited as consideration for
the acquisition.

The statutory reserves of the Group comprise the aggregate of:

(a)

(b)

non-distributable reserves set aside by the Macau subsidiaries in
accordance with relevant statutory requirements; and

reserves required by the relevant laws of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
and are appropriated at directors’ discretion, which are complied with
Articles of Association of respective PRC subsidiaries.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Veeko

For the year ended 31st March, 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Allowance (reversal of allowance) for
inventories
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation
Finance costs
Increase in fair value of investment
properties
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Share-based payment expenses

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Decrease (increase) in rental and utility
deposits paid
Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in rental deposits received

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Tax paid in other jurisdictions

NET CASH FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment properties
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment
Interest received

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-

2077

Annual Report

2017 2016
FET FERT
HK$°000 HK$’000
(21,975) 76,811
2,076 (3,884)
241 256
40,779 41,256
4,941 3,779
(9,937) (154)
(139) (279)
978 1,315
471 726
17,435 119,826
(21,002) (33,728)
4,908 12,237
5,872 (19,639)
16,346 227
11 5
23,570 78,928
(10,046) (24,391)
(4,767) (3,736)
8,757 50,801
(86,163) (1,579)
(23,779) (71,198)
175 92

139 279
(109,628) (72,406)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New import loans raised

New bank loans raised
Repayment of import loans
Repayment of bank loans
Dividends paid

Interest paid on bank borrowings

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR
Represented by bank balances,

deposits and cash

2017 2016
FET TFET
HK$°000 HK$°000
362,141 310,010
173,760 128,444
(313,627) (322,194)
(83,198) (42,836)
(26,277) (50,166)
(4,941) (3,779)
107,858 19,479
6,987 (2,126)
74,226 76,879
(944) (527)
80,269 74,226
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The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The directors
consider the direct holding company is Silver Crown Profits Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is ultimately
owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited for J Cheng Family Trust.
The addresses of the registered office and the principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in “Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 30.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™) for
the first time in the current year.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017

2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) ( Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRS issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'
HKEFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments'
HKEFRS 16 Leases’
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration'
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions'
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with

HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses’
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment property'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle’

I Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January, 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2017.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2017 or Ist

January, 2018, as appropriate.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge accounting

and impairment requirements for financial assets.
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HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are in
relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management policies
as at 31st March, 2017, application of HKFRS 9 in the future may have
a material impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets. The expected credit loss model may result in early provision
of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model
for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a
S-step approach to revenue recognition:
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HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance

obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation
to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognized in the

respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS
16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether
an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of

low value assets.
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HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured
at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation to
leasehold lands for owned use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing cash flows except for the short-term lease payments, payments
for leases of low-value assets and variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of the lease liability within operating cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset for prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of these assets
depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding underlying assets would
be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor
to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31st March, 2017, the Group had non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$614,802,000 as disclosed in note 24. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS
16. In addition, the application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until
the directors complete a detailed review.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017
2. Application of New and Amendments to Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) ( Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for investment properties that are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given

in exchange of goods.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured,
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and
titles have passed.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance, from properties under
operating leases, is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the relevant leases.
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Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair value. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost or
deemed cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in “property revaluation reserve”. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately in profit or loss.
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Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which case the
entire lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for the intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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Financial assets ( Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, rental and utility deposits paid, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances, deposits and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and
principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Financial assets ( Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectable, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, rental deposits
received and secured bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise except for exchange differences on monetary
items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s interests.
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For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected
manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans, including
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme, are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of
an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and
salaries and annual leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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Share options granted to employees of the group entities

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of

the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 26.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting period or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and

future periods.
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The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
disposal of its investment properties.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable values. Management
reviews the inventories listing at the end of each reporting period, and
recognises an allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items
identified based on the inventory ageing analysis and expected market
conditions. Moreover, management also carries out the assessment
of allowance for inventories by comparing the carrying amounts of
inventories with their net realisable values, primarily based on the latest
selling prices. When estimating the net realisable values of the inventories,
significant degree of management judgement, assumptions and estimation
are applied. When the net realisable values of the inventories are lower
than expectation, further allowance may arise. As at 31st March, 2017,
the carrying amount of inventories (net of allowances amounted to
HK§$12,776,000 (2016: HK$10,700,000)) is HK$506,118,000 (2016:
HK$487,192,000).
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Valuation of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period based on valuations performed by independent
qualified professional valuer engaged by the Group. Management works
closely with the valuer and exercises judgement to establish the appropriate
valuation technique and key inputs to the model. In determining the fair
values of parking spaces, the valuer considers the key inputs including market
observable transactions of similar properties and taking into account of the
differences in the location and condition of the investment properties under
direct comparison approach. In determining the fair value of the commercial
property, the valuer considers the key inputs including capitalisation rate and
monthly market rent per square foot under income capitalisation approach.
As at 31st March 2017, the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$104,700,000 (2016: HK$6,650,000).

The management is satisfied that the valuation reflect the current market
conditions. Details of the carrying amount of the Group’s investment
properties are disclosed in Note 13.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. These carrying
amounts are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
The review comprises a comparison of the carrying amount and recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment. Where the actual future
cash flows or fair value less costs to sell are less or more than expected, or
unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances which result in downward
revision of the estimated future cash flows for the purpose of determining
the value in use, impairment loss may arise. As at 31st March, 2017, the
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is HK$214,651,000 (2016:
HK$235,359,000).
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5. SHHEEN 5.  Segment Information
(a) A E K (a)  Operating segments
HAATESTES( TELERE Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being
J)EBEZEE - BSR4t the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of resource
Y75 = 48 I E R S B B R SR A allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
DRI TEAEREALE of goods delivered. No operating segment has been aggregated in
YRR 2 B EN S SN AE determining the reportable segments of the Group as identified by the
TR o chief operating decision makers.
RIEE B FESR L A 8% » A The Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are
EE RS RLENEELIS Cosmetics and Fashion, of which principal activities are as follows:
Eisd  HFEEHAOT
1 — $HELHS Cosmetics -  Sale of cosmetics
R — WERHEREREHE Fashion —  Manufacture and sale of ladies fashion
e LS SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS
DT AZRBSREEDHEDE The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
B2 R EBED - reportable and operating segments.
HEZT—tF For the year ended 31st March, 2017
=B=+—HLtEE
ek £33 PERE i =8
Cosmetics Fashion Segment Total ~ Eliminations ~ Consolidated
TER TER TER TET TER
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
EXE TURNOVER
HIMHE External sales 1,604,151 413,299 2,017,450 = 2,017,450
NRREZHE Inter-segment sales - 527 527 (527) -
1,604,151 413,826 2,017,977 (527) 2,017,450
NEBZEENR Inter-segment sales are charged
ROTTRERTE - at prevailing market rates.
PEER SEGMENT LOSS (14,634) (8,003) (22,637) - (22,637)
REMEATEELFA Increase in fair value of
investment properties 9,937
HA ~ W& K& Other income, gains and losses 1,487
FRITHER Central administration costs (5,821)
MERA Finance costs (4,941)
&R k18 Loss before tax (21,975)
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5. DFHEEHGE) 5.  Segment Information (Continued)

(@)

EEDME(HE)

(a)  Operating segments ( Continued)

PHENRREREE) SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS ( Continued)
BE_T—ARE For the year ended 31st March, 2016
=A=t+—HLHEE
fErg & 53 HERE g o)
Cosmetics Fashion Segment Total ~ Eliminations ~Consolidated
TAT TERT TART TERT TET
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
] TURNOVER
HIMHE External sales 1,722,866 503,597 2,226,463 - 2226463
NERZHE Inter-segment sales - 200 200 (200) =
1,722,866 503,797 2,226,663 (200) 2,226,463
NERZHEENR Inter-segment sales are charged
RiThiAEREE - at prevailing market rates.
PERT(BR) SEGMENT PROFIT (LOSS) 94,019 (8.850) 85,169 = 85,169
REMEATEELFA Increase in fair value of
investment properties 154
HA ~ % R 518 Other income, gains and losses 440
RRITHER Central administration costs (5,173)
RLE A Finance costs (3,779)
[ERiEnpa gl Profit before tax 76,811

EEN A B BUR BN EE3ATS
FEBZEHHEMER - (B
18) B 48 B 2 FE T IR AL Z BR AR
Bl (B548 ) BRI EIRE
MEAFEELA  EFHEAMUY
AR EE s PRITHER
RRERATLUEE -t RE

BAERZREZBNARNTT

EEREZAEAK -

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment (loss) profit
represents the (loss) profit before tax earned by each segment without
allocation of increase in fair value of investment properties, certain
other income, gains and losses, central administration costs and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the executive directors
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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5. Segment Information (Continued)

(a)  Operating segments ( Continued)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS ( Continued)

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION

No analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities is presented
as the executive directors do not review such information for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or regularly

BELEBERARATHER 225 reviewed by the chief operating decision makers:
fE Ed PERE AF =e
Cosmetics Fashion Segment Total Corporate  Consolidated
TET T TAT BT TEL
HKS$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
“E-tF 2017
FE#EE Allowance for inventories 1,200 876 2,076 = 2,076
EX BERGER Depreciation of property,
ZhE plant and equipment 25,242 12,994 38,236 2,543 40,779
R HEHIE Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments - 241 241 - 241
HEEX K Loss on disposal of property,
Ritfa kR plant and equipment 296 682 978 = 978
BEAMY ] Capital expenditure
-EX BEREE - Property, plant and equipment 14,431 9,348 23,779 = 23,779
-REME — Investment properties = = = 86,163 86,163
il B NERE AH &a
Cosmetics Fashion Segment Total Corporate  Consolidated
BT BT BT BT FERT
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$°000
“B-RE 2016
FE(EMmEE)ER Allowance for (reversal
) of allowance) inventories 448 (4,332) (3,884) - (3,884)
EE BERGRMR Depreciation of property,
& plant and equipment 24,162 14,567 38,729 2,527 41,256
BAEERIEZ#E Amortisation of prepaid
) lease payments - 256 256 - 256
HEES BB RHEZ Loss on disposal of
BB property, plant and equipment 521 794 1,315 - 1,315
BARR i Capital expenditure
-EZ BEREE — Property, plant and equipment 118,931 11,980 130,911 179 131,090
-REME — Investment properties = = = 4,096 4,096
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017
5. Segment Information (Continued)

(b)  Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in Hong Kong and

Macau, Taiwan, Singapore and other regions of the PRC. Information

about the Group’s revenue from external customers is presented based

on the geographical locations of operations.

2017 2016

FAERT FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

Hong Kong and Macau 1,955,931 2,112,982
Taiwan 49 37,416
Singapore 25,942 33,178
Other regions of the PRC 35,528 42,887
2,017,450 2,226,463

No revenue from a customer of the Group contributed over 10% of the

total turnover of the Group of the corresponding years.

Information about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding deferred

tax assets and rental deposits paid) is presented based on geographical

locations of the assets.

2017 2016

FAET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

Hong Kong and Macau 285,405 201,756
Taiwan - 415
Singapore - 536
Other regions of the PRC 40,415 46,457
325,820 249,164
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017
6. Finance Costs

Interest on bank borrowings

7. Income Tax Expense

The charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Current year
Overprovision in prior years

Income tax in other jurisdictions
Current year
Under(over)provision in prior years

Deferred tax (Note 16)
Current year

-

2077

Annual Report
2017 2016
TERT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
4,941 3,779
2017 2016
TERT T#ET
HK$’000 HK$’000
829 11,572
(6 (5
823 11,567
3,405 4,840
206 (570)
3,611 4,270
(515) 2,041
3,919 17,878

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profit for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in

the relevant jurisdictions. The corporate tax rate in Taiwan was 17% for both

years.

Under Decree Law No0.58/99/M, a Macau company incorporated under that

Law (called “58/99/M company”) is exempted from Macau complementary

tax (Macau income tax) as long as the 58/99/M company does not sell its

products to a Macau resident company.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017

Te Income Tax Expense (Continued)

Certain subsidiaries operating in Macau are subject to Macau complementary

tax of 12%, subject to finalisation of the tax liability with the relevant

tax authority. During the current year, an underprovision of income tax
of HK$193,000 (2016: overprovision of income tax of HK$611,000) was
recognised and charged (2016: reversed and credited) to profit or loss.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of PRC

subsidiaries is 25%.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit before tax

per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

(Loss) profit before tax

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5%

Effect of different tax rates applicable
to operations in other jurisdictions

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of deductible temporary
difference not recognised

Allowance of tax losses previously
recognised

Under(over)provision in prior years

Income tax expense for the year

2017 2016
FERT FET
HKS$°000 HK$000
(21,975) 76,811
(3,626) 12,674
(910) (864)
1,126 2,697
(2,602) (1,053)
)] (724)

8,092 2,663
1,642 -

- 3,060
200 (575)
3,919 17,878
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HE_ZE—tF=B=+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2017
8. AFEE(EHRE)RN 8.  (Loss) Profit for the Year
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$000
AFEE(EHR)BRFEMR(ETA) (Loss) profit for the year has been
THIFIE: arrived at after charging (crediting):
BETRMEZ(BEEEmME): Employee benefits expenses
(including directors’ emoluments):
B 52 EL Ath g F) Salaries and other benefits 263,124 296,520
LIRS 17 B B 2 1B AT Share-based payments 471 726
SR ORiE I 58I AR Retirement benefits scheme contributions 14,318 15,300
277,913 312,546
TR E IR Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 241 256
% BEN A 2 Auditors’ remuneration
— B ER % — audit services 1,979 2,126
— IR AR 75 — non-audit services 473 569
MR BREXZFERA(HZE) Cost of inventories recognised
as expenses (Note) 1,214,399 1,300,266
E¥ HMERRBZINE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 40,779 41,256
SRITFBA Bank interest income (139) (279)
HEEE - BERFKLZ Loss on disposal of property,
i8R ER(FT A EAMULA plant and equipment, net
Wt K @518 ) (included in other income,
gains and losses) 978 1,315
TREE R ERIR (U ) (BT A Net exchange loss (gain) (included in other
HAA ~ N K E1R) income, gains and losses) 729 (40)
REREMEZHSWA Rental income from investment properties,
(BHEFEBZZH) with negligible outgoings (1,347) (1,003)

Wizt WRABY2EEMARIERFSE  Note: Cost of inventories recognised as expenses included allowance for inventories of
$41#52,076,000/8T( ZE—RF ! HK$2,076,000 (2016: reversal of allowance for inventories of HK$3,884,000).
T & B  [E4313,884,0003 7T ) °
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HE_T-—tF=-RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2017
9. EBRITHEHME 9.  Directors’ and the Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments
ENEERAM(=F—XRF:AfL)EZE  The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2016: six) directors were
BEAZHEMTF - as follows:
—B-tE 2017
Executive director (**
HigEEmE
REZTL
(fryss)”
Ms. Lam Independent non-executive director "/
PEEE Yuk Sum BusknmESe
Mr. Cheng (Chif  BREEL HXAKE BAERE
Chung Man, Executive  Dr. Fok Kam Mr. Lam Mr. Yeung L
Johnny Officer)”  Chu, John Man Tin* Wing Kay Total

FER TER FER FEL FER FER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

fag Fees - - 130 130 150 410
HibEi& Other emoluments
HER2E Salaries and allowances 1,560 660 = = = 2,220
BRTRRIEBIf Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 18 29 - - - 47
& @ Total emoluments 1,578 689 130 130 150 2,677
“E-RE 2016
Executive director "
HTEEmE
RERLT
(TR
Ms. Lam Independent non-executive director **/
BEYEE  YukSum BUERTESH
Mr. Cheng (Chief EHET HXE%E BEEXE BAEXE
Chung Man,  Executive Dr. Fok Kam Mr.Lam  Mr. Yang  Mr. Yeung At
Johnny Officer)”  Chu, John Man Tin' Wei Tak"  Wing Kay Total

TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS$'000

ik Fees - - 130 21 109 150 410
Hitnfl & Other emoluments
e REE Salaries and allowances 1,560 660 = = = = 2,220
RIRiRF 2R Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 18 18 - - - - 36
AR Total emoluments 1,578 678 130 2 109 150 2,666
* R-Z—AE-_RF_H %BEE * On 2nd February, 2016, Mr. Yang Wei Tak resigned as an independent
EEREAAARBIIFRITE non-executive director of the Company and Mr. Lam Man Tin was
ERMBEEEZEAERATR appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company.
BAUIFHITES ©

** MERLZETTBALRBITEME  *= Ms. Lam Yuk Sum is also the chief executive officer of the Company and
HLAmBEEREIHEE her emoluments disclosed above included those services rendered by her as
AR ETBUR AR AT IR 2 AR - the chief executive officer.
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HE_ZE—tF=B=+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2017

9. EERITHEEINE 9. Directors’ and the Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments
(#&) ( Continued)

=2 Notes:

(a) ERAMTRZHATESESMEEER  (2) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their

HEBEARARARAEBSHZ services in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
8 B8 AR 75 T 22 A o and the Group.

(b) ERFARZEIULIFHNITESMES  (b)  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
FEFBERTAARNESZR mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
FEMEEAY o

(c) BEZZ—tEERZIZE—ARE (0 During the years ended 31st March, 2017 and 2016, no emoluments were
ZA=+—HIFE A£EI paid by the Group to the directors and the chief executive officer as an
BAEERTHESZTME inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
1ER BN A& B 2 55 (X 51 Bt B of office. In addition, neither the chief executive officer nor any of the
HE I THEESEME directors waived any emoluments during the years ended 31st March, 2017
EMEREE-_Z—tERE and 2016.
—RE=ZA=+—HLEFEME
SO
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BE_Z—tE=-RA=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2017

10. EEBE 10. Employees’ Emoluments

RAFEAR > Afiie#H ATBIE—A  During the year, the five highest paid individuals included one (2016: one)
(ZB—AE: —)AARES GFAHE  director of the Company, whose emoluments are set out in note 9 above. The
B pOEFIEE A ESCKIEE9 - BATFPUfZ( =  emoluments of the remaining four (2016: four) highest paid individuals are as

T—RE O ) REHATHEMESOT follows:

2017 2016
FET FETT
HK$°000 HK$°000

e Ui hERZEN Salaries, share-based payments
R H At i@ F| and other benefits 3,557 4,023
BASR IR ME A 2 SR B 7R I8 Performance related incentive payments 196 479
RRIEFIET B AR Retirement benefits scheme contributions 70 72
3,823 4,574
2017 2016
EE®AE EE&HE
No. of No. of
employees employees

HEM T FTIIEE : Their remuneration was within the
following bands:

T #BiE1,000,0007% T Not exceeding HK$1,000,000

1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 3

BEZ—tFR-F—"E=A=+—  During the years ended 31st March, 2017 and 2016, no emoluments were paid
BIEFE  AEELEREGRALAM by the Group to these individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
2 FREMAFTKRE ZFENEEM  the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

{""'E o
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HE_ZE—tF=B=+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2017
11. R 11. Dividends
2017 2016
FHET FETT
HK$°000 HK$°000
RAFENER AP RZEE - Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
—E—CHFEREREEER0.6E1L 2017 interim dividend of HK0.6 cent
(ZB—RE: ZEB—REE (2016: 2016 interim dividend of
FREARY BB A%0.878 1L ) HKO0.8 cent) per share 14,333 19,111
ZE-RFERIEEER0.5EL 2016 final dividend of HKO0.5 cent(2016:
(ZE—RE ZZE—AFE 2015 final dividend of HK 1.3 cents) per
REARR BB R1.3340) share 11,944 31,055
26,277 50,166

EETERRTHEE_Z—tF=H  The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
=+—HIEFEXRBERE - ended 31st March, 2017.
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BHE_T—tF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st March, 2017
12. BER(BE)RF 12. (Loss) Earnings Per Share

AARBEENEBLEBREARREH(E  The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share attributable
BB TR A FEE51825.894,000 5T  to the owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year of
(ZE2—RTF  FERFI58,933,0003 7T ) HK$25,894,000 (2016: profit for the year of HK$58,933,000) and on the
REBITAARE BRIMEFIOE(AT  weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company set out below.

Fr5I )& -
2017 2016
B & E Number of shares
METEBRER(EBE)RFZ Weighted average number of ordinary
EEA T I9E shares for the purpose of basic (loss)
earnings per share 2,388,884,410  2,388,884,410
BEBETERZTE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
e P Share options - 11,019,278
FMEtEBREE (B8 RAZ Weighted average number of ordinary
TR shares for the purpose of diluted (loss)
earnings per share 2,388,884,410  2,399,903,688

BE_Z—TtHF=A=+—HILFEEZSE  The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31st March,
R #EERIRRET E W MR ITEALARM 2017 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options will result

EEEEREBRAD - in decrease in loss per share.
13. H“EYE 13. Investment Properties
FET

HK$°000
NFEEE FAIR VALUE
R-ZE—AFMNA—H At Ist April, 2015 2,400
nE Additions 4,096
RIBRPRERZATEELA Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss 154
R-E—ARF=A=+—H At 31st March, 2016 6,650
hE Additions 86,163
EEHEE  WERE Transferred from property, plant and equipment 1,950
RERPERZATEELEA Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss 9,937
R-ZE—tE=B=+—H At 31st March, 2017 104,700

AEBZHEMEMUMNEBN—MELZE  The investment properties of the Group represents the parking spaces in an
KEAZBEMRUMNERN—MEEAY  industrial building located in Hong Kong and a commercial property located
¥ - AKEEAMIMEESE HAEAEE  in Hong Kong. All of the Group’s property’s interests held to earn rental and/
BOOMEE 2 EME#EZ » 19FIBAF  or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model
BEEXEHE  UAERIIEREDE - and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.




AEEREVENR_S—EERZE—K
F=ZRA=1+—HZAFEEDRBEALE
I ERE 2 B A BB ERMEME—
AP R ER B ERBER AR A RETT
ZGEEE - AR RN EEREmEZ
MERRBEBEBRIEER - F—XFRH

Hih{ER S ERERARAR A E AL EEM
Li == NETI E o

=

EZETIEABEAAENNGEDRAR

BRILRAETE > MEEAMENRAIA
BERUERETE - EEEBERMRIEALYZE

R EABRZR S TREEREY
EZMNBERMRRZZRMIFHFE - IgA
BEARLERBRARZIEAFRAVHIR 2 5497849
HEWABRER > UERBENEREZE
EhiBHE o RAFER - ([GERME

R EATEER  MEZBRAR
e kaIERE -

MEREMEEERFFACHF—IBETE
AR AEUMENRT S ETBREZR
% DHERBEZLESE  UEEBRUER
AR Z TR - BEBEAIE1,000,00078 7T
1,800,000/ T E - BEABEMNHIHE
BEF  HEEBUAEMNATEELEFA K

FHEREYEEERMAZEPMIEEEE
ABEBAEALLLER » T13.2% kBTN
2%@51@315}%% o BAL L REEHIE
m- SEEREEBRNEZ AT EEKRRE
VAL JiZJT’”‘ B EARZHEAMR
EMBEERZEANEZATEEE

m- RZIR5K -

R-E—tHE=RA=+—H 4s5BEZ&K
BEMESTFHEALATFEEEREDNE
=k

RAFER @ WRE=B28H A HHH
A

AEEDKPAE{EL02,750,0008T( =8
— N4 16,650,000 TT ) 2 REWE - UL
HAEBER —MIRITRERIE -

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st March, 2017
and 2016 have been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on that
date by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group and possessing
appropriate qualifications and experience in the valuation of properties in the
relevant locations. Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

The valuation was determined based on the direct comparison approach
for the parking spaces in an industrial building and income capitalisation
approach for the commercial property. Direct comparison approach reflects
market observable transactions for similar properties, mainly adjusted for
differences in the location and condition of the investment properties. Income
capitalisation approach reflects the rental income of contractual tenancy
capitalised for the unexpired terms of tenancy and the reversionary market
rent after expiry of tenancy in capitalisation. There has been no change to the
valuation technique during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties, was the
market observable transactions of similar properties, using direct comparison
approach and taking into account of the differences in the location and
condition, which ranged from HKS$1,000,000 to HK$1,800,000 per parking
space. The increase in the market price per parking space would result in an
increase in the fair value of the parking space, and vice versa.

Two of the key inputs used in valuing the investment property were the
capitalisation rate, which was 3.2% and the monthly market rent of HK$315
per square foot. The slight increase in the capitalisation rate would result in
a significant decrease in the fair value of the commercial property, and vice
versa and an increase in monthly market rent per square foot would result in
an increase in the fair value of the commercial property, and vice versa.

The Group’s investment properties are categorised within level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2017.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

The Group has pledged investment properties with a total of HK$102,750,000
(2016: HK$6,650,000) to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.
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HE_ZE—tF=B=+—HLFE For the year ended 31st March, 2017
14. EX -BERNE 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
BEtE  BE _
REF  BTER BEREE GARRE HOER "E ait
Leaschold
landand  Leasehold Plant and  Furniture and Office Motor
buildings improvements  machinery fixtures  equipment vehicles Total

TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
HKS000  HKS00 ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000

AE COST

RZE-LENA-A At Ist April, 2015 111,978 141,553 36,180 57,007 21,405 6,059 374,782
ERAY Exchange adjustments (1,900) (1,543) (1,446) (74) 92) (58) (5,113)
AE Additions 94,188 18,838 53 14,291 3,033 87 131,090
e /i Disposalsfwrite-off SmaMy) 6) @e)  (180) ) BLYY)
RZE-~E=A=1+-H At 31st March, 2016 204,266 135,399 33,186 66,587 23,138 6,586 469,162
ERAY Exchange adjustments (2,813) (2,020) (1,982) (141) (123) (119) (7,198)
AE Additions - 13,334 203 8,221 2,021 - 23,179
HE /& Disposalsfwrite-off - (13,097) (635) (3,782) (2,435) (360) (20,309)
BERANE Transferred to investment properties (694) - - - - - (694)
RZE-tE=A=1+-H At 31st March, 2017 200,759 133,616 30,772 70,885 22,601 6,107 464,740
i DEPRECIATION

RZE-2ENA-A At Ist April, 2015 21,237 117,970 31,162 31,601 15,205 2915 226,090
ERAY Exchange adjustments (383) (1,471) (1,289) (69) (82) (59 (3,353)
FRER Provided for the year 7,044 16,204 2,408 10,263 4228 1,019 41,56
HE /HIREES Eliminated on disposals/write-off - (22,853) (1,601) (3,949) (1,685) (102) (30,190)
RZE-~E=A=1+-H At 31st March, 2016 33,898 109,940 30,680 37,846 17,666 3,173 233,803
ERAY Exchange adjustments (635) (1,933) (1,868) (132) (112) (118) (4,798)
TR Provided for the year 6,973 17,083 1,363 11,037 3414 909 40,779
HE /W Eliminated on disposals/write-off - (12,823) (631) (3,309) (2,03) (360) (19,156)
BERANE Transferred to investment properties (539) - - - - - (539)
RZE-tE=A=1+-H At 31st March, 2017 39,697 112,267 29,544 45440 18,935 4204 250,089
REE CARRYING VALUES

RZE—tE=F=+-H At 31st March, 2017 161,062 21,349 1,228 25,443 3,606 1,903 214,651
RZE-AEF=A=+-H At 31st March, 2016 170,368 25,459 2,506 28,741 5412 2813 235,359

AEBFEZHEIHREFMMNEER  The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are located in Hong Kong and the
thE o PRC.
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BE-2—tE=A=+—ALEFE
14. EX BERRGE)

DIEEE - BB KRR HEBHRREMEE
BHDERERUT FHERATE

HELHRIETF
Leasehold land and buildings
HEEFERR

Leasehold improvements
i 7= i v R

Plant and machinery
BEMREE

Furniture and fixtures
WAEFE

Office equipment

A

Motor vehicles

AEEEHERREARFEE129,029,000# T
(ZZE—7R4 1 134,791,000 ) 2 E+
HRAETF  UFAEBER —METHME
EXHE o

BE-_ZT—tHE=-A=+—HLEEE"
BREF{E155,0008 T2 E T RIEF
BEBREREVE UREGEMWENE
1,795,000 7T 2 5% E th & [ I A R A 1

2

15. FRfTHEEMKIE
FEBZENEEREDSE

FEARABEIIEE L

TEWMME 2247
MENEE
IERENEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2017

14. Property, Plant and Equipment ( Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, less their residual values,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

R EFH
Over the terms of leases
20%E IR E FH( LI EE A %)

20% or over the terms of the leases, whichever is shorter
25%

20%

3313%

20%

The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings with a total net book
value of HK$129,029,000 (2016: HK$134,791,000) to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

During the year ended 31st March, 2017, leasehold land and buildings with
a net book value of HK$155,000 was transferred to investment properties as
well as the gain on revaluation of properties of HK$1,795,000 was recognised
in other comprehensive income.

15. Prepaid Lease Payments

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong 6,705 7,407
Analysed for reporting purpose as:

Current asset 236 252

Non-current asset 6,469 7,155

6,705 7,407

Veek) Wank! colourmixes MorIMOR O




VEEKO INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

iR B M BRRMEE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZE—tF=RB=+—HIEE

16. IEIEFRIAF

TGS HBRETE » ETEER
BEERBEDEN - T ARMERE
S 2 EEFRIBREER DT

EIETRIREE
EERIEEE

TXAFFERBTFERDZEREIL

For the year ended 31st March, 2017
16. Deferred Taxation

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

purposes:
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Deferred tax assets 7,612 7,257
Deferred tax liabilities 3,775) (3,935)
3,837 3,322

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and

REEE(BR)REMAEE movements thereon during the current and prior years:
REREMY

ZEEER ER

Temporary HFEET

EfhE difference WIEEE  Unrealised
Revaluation of from tax Tax profit on @it
properties  depreciation losses inventories Total
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
WoE-HEMA—A At Ist April, 2015 (3,176) (1,093) 3,159 6,572 5,462
ERAR Exchange adjustments - - (99) - (99)
RIEFEREA(IR) Credited (charged) to profit or loss 133 685 (3,060) 201 (2,041)
RZE-RE=B=+—-H At 31st March, 2016 (3,043) (408) - 6,773 3,322
RIBEAPEA(SIZ) Credited (charged) to profit or loss 133 1,311 - (929) 515

R-Z-t&=A=+-H At 31st March, 2017 (2,910) 903 = 5,844 3,837




MRIE—tE=B=+—H x&£H7
{4 88 5 218 ] BT ik it Il 19 i R Eh FR R 1B
8548 /106,585,000 T (Z B — A& ¢
97,184,000 7T ) °

RIEBE—tERIZB—ARE=P=+—
B - E3 5% 2K B8 78 8 K 2 AT 5T 1 g Rl 2R
TR BUE M MHER T R BB IR IE R 18
106,585,00078 7T ( ZF—74£ 97,184,000
BT )EBELRIBEEE - KHIRRIE
BREEERR _E—tEE_T -
(ZE—REZE—REEZZTZK
F)BNEAZ 19,617,000 T ( Z B —K4F ¢
50,084,0007& 7T ) B518 - EAthEs 18 AT R AR
#EEE o

MZB—tHE=B=+—H XEFIE
HRENEC SR EEEEZNRY
BF = %8 515,424,0008 T (ZFE— R &F :
/) REIRIEE EC ML F IR EHF
Z=%R5,473,0008 5T ( —F—REF K )ET
HEED o FRPS FEERAR B FI S A5 AT A LU 8 =)
NINERFEL > A EREERIEEED
FER T AR R = EEETTHERD o

RIBPBSERERE AT NFE—
B—Bi# - EHEA R ARG S
R EEEATENR - MAEHMEBEAR
RARRBERFIMELE 2 GREEEE
60,612,000 T ( Z & — 75 : 63,594,000
BIT) » BRI ALK E BB i H 5 B &
ERHZ R YR EET A RAERE
B AR IRE M BHRRETIREEIRIE
B o

At 31st March, 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$106,585,000
(2016: HK$97,184,000) available for offset against future assessable profits.

At 31st March, 2017 and 2016, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the unused tax losses of HK$106,585,000 (2016: HK$97,184,000)
due to the unpredictability of future assessable profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$19,617,000 (2016: HK$50,084,000)
that will expire in 2017 to 2022 (2016: 2016 to 2026), other losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31st March, 2017, the Group had deductible temporary differences
mainly arising from temporary difference from tax depreciation of
HK$15,424,000 (2016: Nil). Deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of such deductible temporary differences of HK$5,473,000 (2016:
Nil). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to the remaining
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable that assessable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1st
January, 2008 onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to undistributed and accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$60,612,000 (2016: HK$63,594,000) as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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BE-ZE—tF=RB=+—HIEE
17. #E&

18. ENESRIAREM
FEWFRIA

FE U B8 5 74 1R
H At FEULFRIR

7 £ B o H 8H S AE A FE U SR IB 45 F30H
BORZIEEH M TFMBERZEE
BT F60R E120H ° LU AR AR & H
K BRBEZEHHETZENESRIBZER
AT

30BA
31—60H
61—90H
#90H

For the year ended 31st March, 2017
17. Inventories

2017 2016
FET THET
HK$000 HK$’000
Raw materials 8,465 19,667
Work in progress 13,497 24,834
Finished goods 484,156 442,691
506,118 487,192

18. Trade and Other Receivables
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Trade receivables 16,057 18,304
Other receivables 19,542 22,790
35,599 41,094

The Group allows 30 to 60 days credit period for receivables from sales

counters and a credit period of 60 to 120 days to its wholesale customers. The

following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

Within 30 days 8,777 11,833
31 - 60 days 352 1,429
61 — 90 days 671 932
Over 90 days 6,257 4,110
16,057 18,304
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017

18. Trade and Other Receivables ( Continued)

Before accepting any new wholesale customers, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality by investigating their historical credit
record and defines credit limits by customer. Credit sales are made to
customers with a satisfactory and trustworthy credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. At the end of the reporting
period, 82% (2016: 90%) of the trade receivables are neither past due
nor impaired. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the trade
receivables are of good credit quality and those debtors did not have any
default payment history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balances are debtors with an
aggregate carrying amount of HK$2,813,000 (2016: HK$1,881,000) which
are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances. Majority of these receivables have been subsequently settled and
accordingly, no impairment loss was made in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Ageing of trade receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period which are past due but not impaired are set out as below:

2017 2016

THET T#ET

HK$’000 HK$’000

61 — 90 days 257 567
91 — 120 days 2,556 1,314
2,813 1,881
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017
18. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as
below:

DARYEHE LUETTEH E
Denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) HKS$
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
At 31st March, 2017 1,116 4,326
At 31st March, 2016 779 2,007

19. Pledged Bank Deposits

The amounts represent deposits pledged to a bank to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group. The deposits have been pledged to secure
short-term bank borrowings and are therefore classified as current assets. The
deposits carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 0.55% to 3.00% (2016: 2.1%
to 3%) per annum.

The amounts are denominated in RMB.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017

20. Bank Balances, Deposits and Cash

The Group’s bank balances and deposits carry interest at prevailing bank
deposits rates ranging from 0.001% to 1.85% (2016: 0.001% to 3.65%) per
annum and have an original maturity of three months or less.

The Group’s bank balances and deposits that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as

below:
RAR#EEE NAETEE UETEHE
Denominated in
United
States
dollar
RMB HKS (“USD”)
F&T FET FET
HK$000 HKS$°000 HK$’000
At 31st March, 2017 1,882 2,352 69
At 31st March, 2016 2,742 6,427 88

21. Trade and Other Payables

At 31st March, 2017, included in the Group’s trade and other payables were
trade payables of HK$46,116,000 (2016: HK$23,507,000). Details of the aged
analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period are as follows:

2017 2016
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
30HA Within 30 days 25,974 16,114
31 - 60H 31 - 60 days 16,408 2,968
61 - 90H 61 — 90 days 2,029 2,005
8908 Over 90 days 1,705 2,420
46,116 23,507
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21. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s other payables is set out below:

2017 2016

FHET FET

HK$°000 HKS$°000

Accrued expenses 35,095 41,000
Other payables 6,817 8,148
Other taxes payables 998 1,600
42,910 50,748

The Group’s trade and other payables denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

WETEE PON:T-H MEX T EHE
Denominated in

Euro

HKS$ RMB (“EUR”)

FHET FET FET

HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000

At 31st March, 2017 359 68 1,052

At 31st March, 2016 1,585 - 72
22. Secured Bank Borrowings

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

Bank loans 225,867 135,305

Import loans 74,265 25,751

300,132 161,056
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22. Secured Bank Borrowings (Continued)
The secured bank borrowings are repayable as follows:
2017 2016
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
Carrying amounts repayable*:
Within one year 218,322 118,970
In the second year 14,540 8,365
In the third to fifth years inclusive 35,577 20,149
More than five years 31,693 13,572
300,132 161,056
Analysis of carrying amounts:
Amounts due within one year shown
under current liabilities 218,322 118,970
Carrying amount of bank loans that are
not repayable within one year from
the end of the reporting period but
contain a repayment on demand
clause (shown under current liabilities) 81,810 42,086
300,132 161,056
b The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan agreements.

The Group’s borrowings are floating-rate borrowings which carry interest
at effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates)
ranging from 1.5% to 2.95% (2016: 1.5% to 4%) per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out as below:

LU= TEtE LUER 7T &t 8
Denominated in
USD EUR
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
At 31st March, 2017 13,318 6,167
At 31st March, 2016 10,956 3,874

The bank borrowings are secured by certain assets of the Group (see note 25).
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23. BAX 23. Share Capital
LEREE
Number of EBE
ordinary shares Value
TET
HK$’000
TEA% (SALEE0.0LETT) Ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each
EE - Authorised:
RZIE—AZFWA—AH - At 1st April, 2015,
—E-XRE=A=+—H8k 31st March, 2016 and
—E—tE=H=+—H 31st March, 2017 10,000,000,000 100,000
ERITRHE Issued and fully paid:
R-E—AFWA—H - At 1st April, 2015,
—E-RE=ZBA=+—HER 31st March, 2016 and
—E—tEF=HA=+—H 31st March, 2017 2,388,884,410 23,888
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017

24. Operating Leases

The Group as lessee

During the year, the Group made rental payments for buildings under
operating leases as follows:

2017 2016

FHET THET

HK$°000 HK$’000

Minimum lease payments 414,897 392,068
Contingent rental payments 493 5,461
415,390 397,529

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$’000

Within one year 337,572 371,181
In the second to fifth years inclusive 277,230 308,753
614,802 679,934

In addition to these commitments, the Group may pay additional rental
expenses in respect of certain premises which are contingent upon the level of
sales achieved by particular stores.

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for certain
of its retail stores and office properties. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of three years. Certain lease contracts are with contingent rental
arrangements.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017
24. Operating Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$1,347,000 (2016:
HK$1,003,000). All of the properties held have committed tenants ranged

from six months to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for

the following future minimum lease payments:

2017 2016

FHET FET

HKS$’000 HK$°000

Within one year 3,448 32
In the second to fifth years inclusive 5,584 -
9,032 32

25. Pledge of Assets

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged by the

Group to certain banks to secure general banking facilities granted to the

Group:
2017 2016
THET TET
HK$°000 HKS$°000
Investment properties 102,750 6,650
Leasehold land and buildings 129,029 134,791
Pledged bank deposits 5,843 6,235
237,622 147,676
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017

26. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting of
the Company on 30th August, 2013, a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company for the purpose of providing eligible
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. All directors, full-time employees and any other
persons who, in the sole discretion of the board of directors of the Company,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group are eligible to participate in
the Scheme.

At 31st March, 2017, the number of shares in respect of which options had
been granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme in aggregate were
42,160,000 (31st March, 2016: 42,520,000), representing 1.8% (31st March,
2016: 1.8%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of adoption.

The Company may renew this 10% limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal may not exceed 10% of the shares in the
Company in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.
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The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total number of
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon the exercise of the
options granted to each participant (including both exercised and unexercised
options) under the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by the
Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the

Company in issue.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be specified by the
Company at the time of grant. This period must expire no later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the options. At the time of grant of the options,
the Company may specify a minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 21 days from the date on which the letter containing the offer
is delivered to that participant and the amount payable on acceptance of an
option is HKS$1.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company to be issued upon
exercise of the options shall be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
offer. The subscription price will be established by the board of directors of
the Company at the time the option is offered to the participants.

No options may be granted under the Scheme after the date of the tenth
anniversary of the adoption of the respective share option scheme.

No options were granted to the directors of the Company during both years
or outstanding at 31st March, 2016 and 2017 under the Scheme.
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26. FBARHERTEI(E)
TREBAEERIMFRBEIREZ
BRI R S B R 2 B -

A

REAH
Date of grant

“Z-=F+AtH
(E-#)

7th October, 2013
(Batch 1)

“Z-=F+AtH
(B2h)

7th October, 2013
(Batch 2)

“E-MENA-+EA
(E7H)

25th April, 2014
(Batch 6)

“E-MENA-+EAH
(Bth)

25th April, 2014
(Batch 7)

“E-tE&-ANH
(ENH)

9th January, 2017
(Batch 8)

“2-tF-Anf
(Enit)

9th January, 2017
(Batch 9)

ARERATE
Exercisable at
the end of the year

METATEE
Weighted average
exercise price

REBEE_Z—tHF=RA=+—HLEFE

frEaiRaY
Vesting period

“E-CEtRtHE
ZE-RE+RAR
7th October, 2013
to 6th October, 2016

E-ZH+AtRE
ZZ-\E+AAH
Tth October, 2013
to 6th October, 2018

“E-NENAZ+AHE
“E-tEMNAZtMA
25th April, 2014
to 24th April, 2017

“2-PNENA=+RAZE
“2-AENAZ+AA
25th April, 2014
to 24th April, 2019

“E-tE-ARBE
“ECRE-AH

9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2020

“Z-tF-ANHE
—E_"%-RA/H

9th January, 2017 to
8th January, 2022

26.

The following tables disclose details of options granted under the Scheme
held by employees of the Group and movements in such holdings.

TEHE

Exercisable period

“E-N\E+AtHE
—E-\%+AAH
Tth October, 2016
to 6th October, 2018

Z&-\¥+BtHE
ZE2E%1+BXH
Tth October, 2018
to 6th October, 2020

“E-tFNAZ+EHE
“E-7ENAZ+WA
25th April, 2017
{0 24th April, 2019

“2-NEMAZ+HAE
“ET-ENAZ+NA
25th April, 2019
to 24th April, 2021

“ECRE-AAHE
“B-CE-RANR
9th January, 2020 to
8th January, 2022
“E_"E-RAHE
“2ME-ANR
9th January, 2022 to
8th January, 2024

For the year ended 31st March, 2017

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

BRTEE
Exercise
price

per share

0.2250%7
HKS$0.2250

022507
HK$0.2250

0.3000%7
HKS$0.3000

0.3000%7C
HKS$0.3000

0.183287
HKS$0.1832

0.183257
HKS$0.1832

During the year ended 31st March, 2017:

-

2077
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RZB-1E RZB-t%§
mE-H REER REER =B=t+-H
2k b i HRIT{E
Balance Granted Cancelled  Outstanding

at during during at
142016 the year the year 31.3.2017
17,240,000 - (1,280,000) 15,960,000
17,240,000 - (1,280,000) 15,960,000
4,020,000 - (1,900,000) 2,120,000
4,020,000 - (1,900,000) 2,120,000
- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

- 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
42,520,000 6,000,000 (6,360,000) 42,160,000
15,960,000

0.2392 (.2266
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26. EBRERHEETEI(#E) 26. Share Option Scheme ( Continued)
RBEE_Z—R"F=H=+—HLFE  During the year ended 31st March, 2016:
A -
RZF-1F RZE-RE
mA—H rEER  ZR=1-AH
BRTER &8 2 HATE
Exercise Balance Cancelled Outstanding
Rt RS TEsiHEH friEimE price at during at
Date of grant Vesting period Exercisable period per share 142015 the year 31.3.2016
“E-=F+AtH “E-=FtAtHE “E-R"ETRtHE 0.2050;87T 18,040,000 (800,000) 17,240,000
(E-4) “2-AE+AAA “2-\E+AAA HK$0.2250
Tth October, 2013 Tth October, 2013 Tth October, 2016
(Batch 1) to 6th October, 2016 to 6th October, 2018
“E-ZF+RtH “Z-ZE+RtHE “Z-\5+RtHE 0.2050:87T 18,040,000 (800,000) 17,240,000
(E2#) “E-\#+AKA “RCEREHAAA HK$0.2250
Tth October, 2013 7th October, 2013 Tth October, 2018
(Batch 2) to 6th October, 2018 to 6th October, 2020
“E-MENA-+EA “Z-MENA-+EAE  ZE-tENAZTLHE 0.3000/&7C 4,460,000 (440,000) 4,020,000
(EA#) “E-tEmA-+MA “E-NEMA=+MA HK$0.3000
25th April, 2014 25th April, 2014 25th April, 2017
(Batch 6) to 24th April, 2017 to 24th April, 2019
“2-MENA-1+4A “E-NENA-+EAE  ZE-AFMA-+EHE 0.3000/&7C 4,460,000 (440,000) 4,020,000
(Et#) “E-A%MAZ+MA “E_-%MA-+MA HKS$0.3000
25th April, 2014 25th April, 2014 25th April, 2019
(Batch 7) to 24th April, 2019 to 24th April, 2021
45,000,000 (2,480,000) 42,520,000
AREHRATHE
Exercisable at
the end of the year _
MR
Weighted average
exercise price 0.2399 0.2392
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017

26. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

No share options exercised during the year ended 31st March, 2017 (2016:
Nil).

During the year ended 31st March, 2017, options were granted on 9th
January, 2017 under the Scheme. The estimated fair values of the options
granted on that date were:

HKS$
Date of grant AT
9th January, 2017 (Batch 8) 0.041
9th January, 2017 (Batch 9) 0.051

In respect of share options granted on 9th January, 2017, the fair values were
calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model (the “Black-Scholes
Model”). The inputs into the model were as follows:

Batch 8 Batch 9
EAHM Eht
Number of options granted 3,000,000 3,000,000

HKS$0.17603% T
HKS$0.1832% T

HKS$0.17603% T
HKS$0.1832& 7T

Share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility 45.47% 50.96%
Expected life 5 yearstF 7 yearsT
Risk-free rate 1.374% 1.374%
Expected dividend yield 5.795% 5.376%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over past 5 to 7 years up to valuation date.

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$471,000 for the year ended
31st March, 2017 (2016: HK$726,000) in relation to share options granted by
the Company.

The Black-Scholes Model has been used to estimate the fair value of the
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme for
qualifying employees of the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong.
The assets of the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes at the lower
of HKS$1,500 or 5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The Company’s subsidiary operating in Singapore is required to participate
in the Central Provident Fund (“CPF”) scheme. The retirement benefit
costs charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represent contributions to the CPF scheme by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the CPF scheme.

The Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are also required to
make contributions to state-managed retirement benefit schemes in the
PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specific percentage of
the monthly basic salaries of the employees to the relevant schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to these pension
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The branch of the Company’s subsidiary operating in Taiwan adopted a
defined contribution scheme governed by the Labor Pension Act (“LPA”).
LPA prescribes that the pension contribution rate by an employer to an
employee’s individual pension account per month shall not be less than six
percent of each employee’s monthly salary or wage.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during
the year was as follows:

2017 2016

FHET TFHET

HK$’000 HK$°000

Short-term benefits 4,966 5,170
Post-employment benefits 88 87
Share-based payments 99 120
5,153 5,377

The remuneration of directors and key executives is recommended to the
Board by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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For the year ended 31st March, 2017

29. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Non-current Assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current Assets

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Bank balances and cash

Current Liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net Current Assets

Capital and Reserves
Share capital
Reserves (Note)

2017 2016
FET TET
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
132,012 132,012
327 326
356,105 356,058
213 169
356,645 356,553
865 931
202,759 201,823
203,624 202,754
153,021 153,799
285,033 285,811
23,888 23,888
261,145 261,923
285,033 285,811
MORIMOR O
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29. KRATFHERRAFT(#AE) 29. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Mt -

RZZ-L%FNA—-H
FEERIRBEZARA
ERRABEZ

DU B2 2 B
Bz ke
ERBNERE(MEI)
RZF-"E=A=+-H
FEEBIRBZARA
ERRAKELZ

DU EGY-E-27- A 4]
B ke
BRBNELBRE(MZ1)

R-B—tF=RB=t+-H

( Continued)
Note:
BRERR
BROBE  #MARE Share  RTFHF
Share  Contributed option Retained =i
premium surplus reserve profits Total
TERT TERT TERT TER TER
HKS$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$°000
At Ist April, 2015 205,048 53,135 1,054 3,424 262,661
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year = = = 48,759 48,759
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments - - 726 - 726
Share options cancelled - - (57) - (57)
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 11) - - - (50,166) (50,166)
At 31st March, 2016 205,048 53,135 1,723 2,017 261,923
Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year = = = 25,297 25,297
Recognition of equity-settled share-
based payments - - 471 - 471
Share options cancelled - - (269) - (269)
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 11) - - - (26,277) (26,277)
At 31st March, 2017 205,048 53,135 1,925 1,037 261,145
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30. FEMBAREE 30. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
ARARRZE—LEtERZE—NRF=A
E+—HREEMBARMGFEMNT -

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31st March,
2017 and 2016 were as follows:

KRB
HHE®T
B&A 5
EBITR BEAEELEHI
MERAR Proportion of
B2 EER nominal value of
Bk 3T Hh BY Issued and issued share
Place of fully paid  capital/ registered
MEBATRE incorporation/ share capital/ capital held FEXEH
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities
(f5ta)
(Note a)
2017 2016
TRELCHMAERAR & 1,000,000t  100% 100% LS EEERZE
Colourmix Cosmetics Company Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Retailing of cosmetics
Limited & skin care products
Colourmix Cosmetics Retail 5B 100,000t  100% 100% LS EEERZE
Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 Retailing of cosmetics
& skin care products
Colourmix International &8 10,0007t 100% 100%  HEME
Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Property holding
HKIBKRRBIE T EEESRFHE FRE] 13,000,000t  100% 100%  miIcEE
BIRAR(HE#D) PRC HK$13,000,000 Manufacturing of
Meko Fashion (Zhuhai-Macau garments
Cross Boarder Industrial Zone,
Zhuhai) Company Limited
(Note b)
JEEERESEEARAR FER 20,000,000t  100% 100%  piEk&diE
(HtzEDb) PRC HK$20,000,000 Manufacturing of

Shantou Huanan Digao Fashion
Company Limited (Note b)

Veeko  Wanko
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30, FEMBATIEFIE(#Z)  30. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries (Continued)

KRB
BFRE®T
BEA 51
EBTR BEAEELEH
BERE Proportion of
E HEmEAR nominal value of
P 37 3t Bk Issued and issued share capital/
Place of fully paid registered
fiEA TR incorporation/ share capital/ capital held FEXH
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities
(Wf&ta)
(Note a)
2017 2016
JLERF S AR &R B BR A R (HaED) FHE 28,350,000  100% 100% AR EE R
PRC HK$28,350,000 Retailing and
wholesaling
of garments
JLERER SRS SR BRA R (HED) FHE 36,000,000&7T  100% 100%  pEk&diE
Shantou Yungao Fashion PRC HK$36,000,000 Manufacturing of
Company Limited (Note b) garments
BEREERAR & 2,400,000t  100% 100%  mKREJE
Veeko Fashion Company Hong Kong HKS$2,400,000 Retailing of garments
Limited
Veeko Fashion Hrng 1,000,000%rm03ET ~ 100% 100%  PREE
(Singapore) Pte Ltd. Singapore SGD1,000,000 Retailing of garments
Veeko Holdings Limited HERREHS 618.56%&7Tt  100% 100%  #H/REER
BVI US$618.56 Investment holding
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30. EEMBABFIREE)

For the year ended 31st March, 2017
30. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries ( Continued)

Z /NS
HEERT
B&AR 5
EBTR BEAREELEH
BERA Proportion of
i FMER nominal value of
Pl 313 BE Issued and issued share capital/
Place of fully paid registered
MBAT RIS incorporation/ share capital/ capital held ETEXE#H
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital by the Company Principal activities
(Wfita)
(Note a)
2017 2016
Wina Success Limited 100t 100% 100%  IFEMmE
Hong Kong HKS$100 Property holding
BYEREFMARAR 100,0002F3#%  100% 100%  pIcEE
Ying Choi Macau Company Macau MOP100,000 Manufacturing of
Limited garments
VioEz2 Notes:
a. AT BH#%EIF A Veeko Holdings a. The Company directly holds the interest in Veeko Holdings Limited. All

Limited BY#%E © EXFRAEH
A AL R BEREE -

b. RARLEZEHAIBIRERZE
P v 3

S i 2 B R R B O P AR AR B R A A
EAEREENEREES

ERIHESRAENEAETATERELE
B BN TR AR AN EE
HEEZKEATR - EER R HE A
BARZHBEESERNBRIE -

other interests shown above are indirectly held by the Company.

b. The companies are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results of the Group for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the assets or liabilities of the Group at the
end of the year. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
secured bank borrowings disclosed in note 22, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

2017 2016
FET TFAETT
HKS$’000 HK$000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash equivalents) 225,285 227,697
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 353,093 192,728

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and other receivables, rental
and utility deposits paid, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, deposits
and cash, trade and other payables, rental deposits received and secured
bank borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (represented by currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Financial Instruments ( Continued)

32.

32b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies ( Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales, purchases and secured bank borrowings, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. In addition, group
entities are exposed to foreign currency risk attributable to
intra-group receivables and payables where the denomination
of the receivables and payables is in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s currency risk is mainly attributable to the
exposure outstanding on bank balances and deposits,
receivables, payables, bank borrowings and intra-group
receivables and payables denominated in RMB, HKS$, USD and
EUR. The carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

&E BfE

Assets Liabilities
2017 2016 2017 2016
FERT FET FERT FER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
8,841 9,756 68 -
6,078 8,434 50,607 69,802
69 88 13,318 10,956
- - 7,219 3,946
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122

32. &I A(AE) 32. Financial Instruments ( Continued)
32b. BIFREIEEEEER 32b. Financial risk management objectives and
BUR(#&) policies (Continued)
N A D) Market risk (Continued)
(i) BE#E kg (#E) (i)  Currency risk (Continued)
BURE 7347 Sensitivity analysis
TREFMEBINAEEM The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
EEARZINERERE (2016: 5%) increase and decrease in the functional currency
RASMEEEEER | F K FBESY of each group entity against the relevant foreign currency.
(ZE—RE:5%)ZH 5% (2016: 5%) represents management’s assessment of the
RE - 5%(ZF—REF: reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
5% ) B E IR i DL H S BE sensitivity analysis includes the Group’s outstanding foreign
Rul g B ET AT currency denominated monetary items, intra-group receivables
BB E L - SR and payables where the denomination of the receivables and
EANBEAEEXRTE payables is in currencies other than the functional currency
RIMEEEEMIEE MK of the relevant group entities and adjusts their translation at
£ [B P9 BB FE UL K% FE A5 7R 1B the year end for a 5% (2016: 5%) increase in foreign currency
(HERU R FIANIE rates. A (negative) positive number below indicates (increase)
LEREE AR ZINEEE decrease in post-tax loss (2016: (decrease) increase in post-tax
HEHEE ) W ERIRER profit) for the year where the functional currency of each
BS%N(ZF—RE:5%) group entity strengthens 5% (2016: 5%) against the relevant
EAFLREERE T foreign currency. For a 5% (2016: 5%) weakening of functional
RZ(BE)EHRME currency of each group entity against the relevant currency,
BEBARZNERSR there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
HEINNEE2AEN(ZE (loss) profit.
— R 5% ) ZIERTA
FEMERBIEERGEM)
WO (ZB—RE  RER
FBRRCHRD)IEM) - =
MREEBARZINEEE
RERMINERESN(ZF
—INE 5% )BE HEHR
% (18 )R FE M R 2
ERERZEE -
AREZEE vWA 7 1 E W47 Brezd
RMB impact HKS impact USD impact EUR impact
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Tin iR FiEn TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TR
HKS'000 HKS000 HEKS000 HKS000 HEKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000
HAFE(BR)RN 2 Impact on (loss)
profit for the year (366) (407) 1,834 2,562 553 454 301 165
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Financial Instruments ( Continued)

32.

32b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies ( Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits (see note 19 for details of
the balances). The management monitors the fair value interest
rate risk exposure and considers it as insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate short-term bank deposits and bank
borrowings (see notes 20 and 22 for details of these balances).
It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate
of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
The exposure to the interest rate risk for variable-rate bank
deposits is insignificant.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR?”) arising from the Group’s bank

borrowings.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to fair value and cash flow interest rate
risks. However, management monitors interest rate exposure on
ongoing basis and will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.
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Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for bank borrowings. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at
the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 (2016: 50) basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 (2016: 50) basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year ended 31st March, 2017 would
increase/decrease by HK$1,253,000 (2016: post-tax profit would
decrease/increase by HK$672,000).

Credit risk

As at 31st March, 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt and on a collective basis at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number of counterparties and
customers.
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Liquidity risk

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a major source of liquidity.
Details of which are set out in note 22. As at 31st March, 2017, the
Group has available unutilised banking facilities of HK$43,837,000
(2016: HK$103,048,000).

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s contractual maturity for its
non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank borrowings containing a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.

R-B-t&

AERE ZA=1-A

BREXT, nERE  CREE

mERHRE  SR-ER Total Carrying
Weighted ~ Ondemand —Z=fB =ZERZ—% undiscounted amount
average  or less than 1-3 3 months cash at
interest rate 1 month months to [ year flows 31.3.2017
Al TiEn Tin TiEn TiEn Tin

1 HKS000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000

- 52,667 266 - 52933 5933

- - B - 8 B

VY 301,206 - - 301,206 300,132
353,873 294 - 354,167 353,093
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BE_Z—tHF=HA=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31st March, 2017
32. &I A(AE) 32. Financial Instruments ( Continued)
32v. HERABEEBER 32b. Financial risk management objectives and
BUR(#&) policies ( Continued)
HEE LR () Liquidity risk (Continued)
RIE-AE
*HRE ZR=1-H
BERH neRE  KEfE
MEFEHE  HR-fER Total  Carrying
Weighted ~ Ondemand —E=f8F =fERZ—% undiscounted amount
average  or less than 1-3 3 months cash at
interest rate 1 month months to I year flows 31.3.2016

At TEn  TEn TEn TEn TEn
%  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000

i S 2016
e eRER Non-derivative
financial liabilities
ENERTIBRA Trade and other payables
LR - 30315 1,340 . 31,655 31,655
Bhfske Rental deposits received - - 17 - 17 17
BERGAEE Secured bank borrowings
-%E - variable rate 221 157,077 1,711 2,604 161,392 161,056

187,392 3,068 2,604 193,064 192,728
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BE_ZT—tHE=B=+—HILFE
32. &EMIBE(A#E)

32b. BIFERGEEBER
BR(#E)

HREFIZERATAH  REEREKE
MG ZRITEEHIATREKRSE D
H—EAIZRHEN HR_E—tEFER_
E-—RE=ZA=+—8 ZERTEE

& EtEREE 9 Bl A300,132,0007% 7T &
155,910,000 7T © & B EIAE B 2 BIFEHR
W BEETHERTETEERBEEEX
BIEEERR - EEMME - BRARITEENR
BERGEHZREERBEAmMML RS
HRBEHWEE(ZE—RE  RE)RE
B HEEHINTE:

-A 31st March, 2017
A 31st March, 2016

32c. AFEEE

TREERERMBEZATEEDRRE
TR EREMTE BRI 2 EEEXE
E - MABBERBABBARRZ ST
ZIEERRZITER -

KAREERE  WREMBRERI B
Az eRMEEREMBEZREER
HATEERS -

For the year ended 31st March, 2017
32. Financial Instruments ( Continued)

32b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies ( Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on
demand or less than 1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis. As
at 31st March, 2017 and 2016, the aggregate carrying amounts of these bank
borrowings amounted to HK$300,132,000 and HK$155,910,000, respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid within seven years (2016: six years) after the end
of the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements, details of which are set out in the table below:

YRS -RARREXERAN LB RE(RERERADEH)
Maturity Analysis - Bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

% AiRRE

g RER hENE
Ondemand ~ 1E38R  JEREIE SENE Total i
or less than 1-3 3 months 1325 155E Over  undiscounted Carrying
1 month month tolyear  1-Dyears  2-Syears Syears  cash outflow amomnt
Thn Tin Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
196,065 5925 18,600 16,204 40,350 32,820 309,964 300,132
88,027 5,521 21,693 9,295 22,39 15,467 162,402 155,910

32c. Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis, with most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects
the credit risk of counterparties.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Veeko wankl colourmixey MoriMoR O
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Rig RESULTS
HE=B=1—HLEFE
Year ended 31st March,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
TER TER TERT TR FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
BEE TURNOVER 1,408,624 1,619240 1996920 2226463 2,017,450
PridEE R (BE) PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 66,719 56,534 121,498 76,811 (21,975)
FIBREY INCOME TAX EXPENSE (12,478) (10,774) (19,057) (17,878) (3,919
FESF(HA) PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 54,041 45,760 102,441 58,933 (25,894)
EEHERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
®=B=+—-H
At 31st March,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
TER TER TERT TR TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
BERT TOTAL ASSETS 781,560 839,830 929,857 994,136 1,095,091
BRERE TOTAL LIABILITIES (159,968) (184,603) (184,736) (241,447) (395,644)
RREE SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS 621,592 655,027 745,121 752,689 699,447
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